

453

SECTION E

MES
JLG

12 ***-1856/2.2* SECTION 707.** 25.43 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 25.43 (3) Except for the purpose of investment as provided in s. 25.17 (2) (d),
14 the environmental improvement fund may be used only for the purposes authorized
15 under ss. 20.320 (1) (r), (s), (sm), (t), (x) and (y) ~~and~~, (2) (s) and (x) and (3) (q), 20.370
16 (4) (mt), (mx) and (nz), (8) (mr) and (9) (mt), (mx) and (ny), 20.505 (1) (v), (x) and (y),
17 281.58, 281.59, 281.595, 281.60, 281.61 and 281.62.

18 ***-1187/1.1* SECTION 708.** 25.46 (1r) of the statutes is created to read:

19 25.46 (1r) The moneys transferred from the Wisconsin development reserve
20 fund under 1999 Wisconsin Act (this act), section 9225 (1).

21 ***-1487/1.2* SECTION 711.** 25.46 (12) of the statutes is created to read:

22 25.46 (12) The funds transferred under s. 292.65 (11).

23 ***b0238/4.4* SECTION 711m.** 25.46 (19) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 25.46 (19) The environmental impact fee fees imposed under s. ss. 101.9208 (2)
25 and 342.14 (1r) for environmental management.

1 ***-0095/3.2*** SECTION 712. 25.465 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 25.465 (8) The fees collected under s. 94.72 (5) (b) and (6) (a) 1. and 2. and (i).

3 ***-1432/7.44*** SECTION 713. 25.47 of the statutes is renumbered 25.47 (intro.)

4 and amended to read:

5 **25.47 Petroleum inspection fund.** (intro.) There is established a separate
6 nonlapsible trust fund designated as the petroleum inspection fund, to consist of ~~the~~:

7 (1) The fees imposed under s. 168.12 (1), the.

8 (2) The payments under s. 101.143 (4) (h) 1m., the

9 (3) The payments under s. 101.143 (5) (a) and the.

10 (4) The net recoveries under s. 101.143 (5) (c).

11 ***b0344/3.9*** SECTION 714c. 25.47 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

12 25.47 (1m) Any fees imposed under s. 101.143 (2) (em) 1.

13 ***-1432/7.45*** SECTION 715. 25.47 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

14 25.47 (5) The moneys transferred from the appropriation account under s.
15 20.143 (3) (s).

16 ***b0344/3.10*** SECTION 715e. 25.47 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

17 25.47 (6) The net proceeds of revenue obligations issued under s. 101.143 (9m)
18 that are transferred from a separate and distinct fund outside the state treasury, in
19 an account maintained by a trustee, under s. 18.562 (3) and (5) (e).

20 ***-1488/1.1*** SECTION 716. 25.48 of the statutes is amended to read:

21 **25.48 Dry cleaner environmental response fund.** There is established a
22 separate nonlapsible trust fund designated as the dry cleaner environmental
23 response fund, to consist of the moneys required under s. 77.9964 (3) to be deposited
24 in the fund and moneys collected under ss. 292.65 (9) (c) and (9m).

25 ***-0030/2.25*** SECTION 717. 25.50 (1) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 25.50 (1) (d) “Local government” means any county, town, village, city, power
2 district, sewerage district, drainage district, town sanitary district, public inland
3 lake protection and rehabilitation district, local professional baseball park district
4 created under subch. III of ch. 229, family care district under s. 46.2895, public
5 library system, school district or technical college district in this state, any
6 commission, committee, board or officer of any governmental subdivision of this
7 state, any court of this state, other than the court of appeals or the supreme court,
8 or any authority created under s. 231.02, 233.02 or 234.02.

9 ***b0365/2.44* SECTION 717g.** 25.61 of the statutes is amended to read:

10 **25.61 ~~Information technology investment~~ VendorNet fund.** There is
11 created a separate nonlapsible trust fund designated as the ~~information technology~~
12 ~~investment~~ VendorNet fund consisting of all revenues accruing to the state from fees
13 assessed under ss. 16.701 and 16.702 and from gifts, grants and bequests made for
14 ~~information technology development~~ the purposes of ss. 16.701 and 16.702 and
15 moneys transferred to the fund from other funds.

16 ***b0365/2.44* SECTION 717r.** 25.61 of the statutes, as affected by 1995
17 Wisconsin Act 351, section 4m, and 1997 Wisconsin Act 36, section 5, is repealed and
18 recreated to read:

19 **25.61 VendorNet fund.** There is created a separate nonlapsible trust fund
20 designated as the VendorNet fund consisting of all revenues accruing to the state
21 from fees assessed under s. 16.701 and from gifts, grants and bequests made for the
22 purposes of s. 16.701 and moneys transferred to the fund from other funds.

23 ***b0411/5.10* SECTION 717m.** 25.66 of the statutes is created to read:

24 **25.66 Tobacco control fund.** (1) There is created a separate nonlapsible
25 trust fund, known as the tobacco control fund, to consist of the following:

1 (a) The first \$2,492,000 of the moneys received in fiscal year 1999–2000 under
2 the Attorneys General Master Tobacco Settlement Agreement of November 23, 1998.

3 (b) Beginning in fiscal year 2000–01, the first \$26,600,000 of the moneys
4 received each year under the Attorneys General Master Tobacco Settlement
5 Agreement of November 23, 1998.

6 (2) Amounts in the fund may be distributed only for the purposes specified in
7 s. 255.15.

8 ***b0577/5.6* SECTION 717m.** 25.55 of the statutes is created to read:

9 **25.55 Health insurance risk-sharing plan fund.** There is established a
10 separate nonlapsible trust fund designated as the health insurance risk-sharing
11 plan fund, to consist of:

12 (1) All moneys appropriated under s. 20.435 (4) (af).

13 (2) All moneys appropriated under s. 20.435 (4) (ah).

14 (3) Insurer assessments under ch. 149.

15 (4) Premiums paid by eligible persons under ch. 149.

16 ***-1806/3.13* SECTION 718.** 25.80 of the statutes is amended to read:

17 **25.80 Tuition trust fund.** There is established a separate nonlapsible trust
18 fund designated as the tuition trust fund, consisting of all revenue from enrollment
19 fees and the sale of tuition units under s. ~~16.24~~ 14.63.

20 ***b0278/1.1* SECTION 718g.** 26.08 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 26.08 (2) (a) Except as provided under pars. (b) ~~and (e)~~ to (d), the department
22 may lease state park land or state forest land for terms not exceeding 15 years.

23 ***b0278/1.1* SECTION 718r.** 26.08 (2) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

1 26.08 (2) (d) The department may lease Northern Highland American Legion
2 State Forest land on Statehouse Lake in the town of Manitowish Waters for the
3 North Lakeland Discovery Center for a term not exceeding 30 years.

4 ***-0460/1.2*** SECTION 719. 26.145 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

5 ***b0258/1.1*** SECTION 720m. 27.01 (7) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

6 27.01 (7) (a) 3. In this subsection “vehicle admission area” means the Bong area
7 lands acquired under s. 23.09 (13), the Wisconsin Dells natural area, the Point Beach
8 state forest, recreational areas in other state forests designated as such by the
9 department, designated use zones within recreation areas established under s.
10 23.091 (3), and any state park or roadside park except those specified in par. (c) 5.

11 ***b0276/1.1*** SECTION 720g. 27.01 (15) (title) of the statutes is repealed and
12 recreated to read:

13 27.01 (15) (title) CERTAIN TYPES OF CAMPSITES.

14 ***b0276/1.1*** SECTION 720m. 27.01 (15) of the statutes is renumbered 27.01 (15)
15 (b) and amended to read:

16 27.01 (15) (b) ~~The department shall maintain a ratio of number of state park~~
17 ~~campsites with an electric receptacle to receptacles shall be maintained by the~~
18 ~~department so that not more than 25% of all state park campsites that is equal to or~~
19 ~~less than the ratio which exists on April 26, 1988 have electric receptacles and not~~
20 less than 25% of all state park campsites are rustic state park campsites.

21 ***b0276/1.1*** SECTION 720r. 27.01 (15) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

22 27.01 (15) (a) In this subsection:

23 1. “Rustic state park campsite” means a state park campsite in a campground
24 that meets all of the requirements that are promulgated by rule by the department

1 for campgrounds that do not provide modern facilities such as electrical receptacles,
2 flush-type toilets and showers.

3 2. "State park campsite" means a campsite that is located in a state park.

4 ~~*-1250/5.7* SECTION 721. 28.02 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

5 ~~28.02 (2) ACQUISITION. The department may acquire lands or interest in lands~~
6 ~~by grant, devise, gift, condemnation or purchase within the boundaries of~~
7 ~~established state forests or purchase areas; and outside of such boundaries for forest~~
8 ~~nurseries, tracts for forestry research or demonstration and for forest protection~~
9 ~~structures, or for access to such properties. In the case of condemnation the~~
10 ~~department shall first obtain approval from the appropriate standing committees of~~

11 ~~*-0187/1.2* SECTION 722. 28.05 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

12 ~~28.05 (1) LIMITATIONS. Cutting shall be limited to trees marked or designated~~
13 ~~for cutting by a forester in the professional series of the state classified civil service~~
14 ~~or by a department-designated employe equally qualified by reason of long, practical~~
15 ~~experience. The department may sell products removed in cultural or salvage~~
16 ~~cuttings and standing timber designated in timber sale contracts, but all sales shall~~
17 ~~be based on tree scale or on the scale, measure or count of the cut products. The~~
18 ~~department may require that a person purchasing products or standing timber~~
19 ~~under a timber sale contract provide surety for the proper performance of the~~
20 ~~contract either directly or through a bond furnished by a surety company authorized~~
21 ~~to do business in this state.~~

22 ~~*b0262/1.1* SECTION 722e. 28.05 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

23 ~~28.05 (2) PROCEDURE. Sales of cut products or stumpage having an estimated~~
24 ~~value of \$1,000 \$3,000 or more shall be by public sale after 2 publications of a~~
25 ~~classified advertisement announcing the sale in a newspaper having general~~

1 circulation in the county in which the timber to be sold is located. Sales with an
2 estimated value of \$2,500 ~~\$3,000~~ or more requires approval by the secretary.

3 ***b0262/1.1* SECTION 722m.** 28.11 (6) (b) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 28.11 (6) (b) 1. Any timber sale with an estimated value of ~~\$1,000~~ \$3,000 or
5 more shall be by sealed bid or public sale after publication of a classified
6 advertisement announcing the sale in a newspaper having general circulation in the
7 county in which the timber to be sold is located. Any timber sale with an estimated
8 value below ~~\$1,000~~ \$3,000 may be made without prior advertising. Any timber sale
9 with an estimated value of ~~\$2,500~~ \$3,000 or more requires approval of the secretary.

10 ***b0262/1.1* SECTION 722s.** 28.22 of the statutes is amended to read:

11 **28.22 Timber sales; community forests.** Any timber sale from a community
12 forest shall be based on the scale, measure or count of the cut products. Any timber
13 sale with an estimated value of ~~\$1,000~~ \$3,000 or more shall be by public sale after
14 2 publications of a classified advertisement announcing the sale in a newspaper
15 having general circulation in the county in which the timber to be sold is located.

16 ***b0397/1.1* SECTION 722m.** 29.024 (2g) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

17 29.024 (2g) (e) *Alternative to providing social security numbers.* If the federal
18 government allows a method under the system under s. 49.857 (2) for purposes of
19 administering this subsection that does not require the use of social security
20 numbers of individuals applying for or holding approvals, the department shall
21 request that the legislative reference bureau prepare legislation that allows
22 compliance with that method and that eliminates the requirement that individuals
23 provide their social security numbers under the system. The secretary shall submit
24 the proposed legislation to the standing committee of each house of the legislature
25 that has jurisdiction over fish and wildlife matters under s. 13.172 (3).

1 ***b0398/2.3* SECTION 722m.** 29.001 (28) of the statutes is created to read:

2 29.001 (28) "Food distribution service" means a program that provides food or
3 serves meals directly to individuals with low incomes or to elderly individuals, or
4 that collects and distributes food to persons who provide food or serve meals directly
5 to these individuals.

6 ***b0405/3.1* SECTION 722v.** 29.024 (6) (a) 4. of the statutes is created to read:

7 29.024 (6) (a) 4. Contract with persons who are not employes of the department
8 to operate a statewide automated system for issuing approvals.

9 ***-0216/2.1* SECTION 723.** 29.024 (6) (am) of the statutes is created to read:

10 29.024 (6) (am) In reserving deer hunting back tag numbers, the department
11 may do any of the following:

12 1. Directly reserve the numbers.

13 2. Appoint, as an agent of the department, the clerk of one or more counties to
14 reserve the numbers.

15 3. Appoint, as agents of the department, persons who are not employes of the
16 department to reserve the numbers.

17 ***-0216/2.2* SECTION 724.** 29.024 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 29.024 (6) (b) The clerk of each county appointed under par. (a) 2. or (am) 2. may
19 accept the appointment.

20 ***-0216/2.3* SECTION 725.** 29.024 (6) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 29.024 (6) (d) The department may promulgate rules regulating the activities
22 of persons appointed under ~~par. pars.~~ (a) 2. and 3. and 4. and (am) 2. and 3.

23 ***b0407/2.1* SECTION 725g.** 29.164 (3) (ci) of the statutes is created to read:

24 29.164 (3) (ci) *Fourth preference.* The department shall create a 4th preference
25 category in issuing wild turkey hunting licenses to applicants who are qualified

1 nonresident landowners. For purposes of this paragraph, a qualified nonresident
2 landowner is a person who is not a resident and who owns at least 50 acres in one
3 parcel in an established wild turkey hunting zone and who agrees to allow other
4 persons to hunt wild turkeys on that land if those persons first obtain permission to
5 hunt from the landowner. If more than one individual is the landowner of a single
6 parcel of land, only one individual may be considered a qualified nonresident
7 landowner.

8 ***b0407/2.1* SECTION 725r.** 29.164 (3) (cm) of the statutes is amended to read:
9 29.164 (3) (cm) *Fourth Fifth preference.* The department shall create a 4th 5th
10 preference category in issuing wild turkey hunting licenses to all other nonresident
11 applicants ~~who are not resident applicants.~~

12 ***-0186/1.2* SECTION 726.** 29.181 (2m) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to
13 read:

14 29.181 (2m) RESIDENT FARM OWNER. (intro.) If the department determines that
15 for a deer management area the number of available bonus deer hunting permits for
16 a single season will exceed the number of applications submitted, the department
17 may authorize by rule the issuance of one or more bonus deer hunting permits to a
18 resident without the resident having to pay any fee, including any processing or
19 issuing fee, if the resident meets all of the following requirements:

20 ***b0393/2.1* SECTION 726c.** 29.184 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 29.184
21 (2).

22 ***b0393/2.1* SECTION 726e.** 29.184 (2) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

23 ***b0393/2.1* SECTION 726j.** 29.184 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 29.184 (6) (b) *Cumulative preference system; random selection.* If the number
25 of qualified applications for Class A bear licenses exceeds the number of available

1 licenses, the department shall select applicants to be issued Class A bear licenses
2 based upon a cumulative preference system. This system shall establish preference
3 categories for those applicants who applied for but who were not issued Class A bear
4 licenses or bear harvest permits under s. 29.1085 (3) (b), 1993 stats., in the previous
5 season, with higher priority given to those categories with more preference points
6 than those with fewer preference points. For each season, the department shall
7 allow each applicant under the system to apply for a preference point or for a license.
8 The department shall give a preference point to each applicant who applies for a
9 ~~given season and~~ preference point and to each applicant who applies for a license but
10 ~~who is not selected or who is selected but declines to pay the required fee for a Class A~~
11 ~~bear license.~~ Applicants who fail to apply for either a preference point or a license
12 at least once during any 3 consecutive years shall lose all previously accumulated
13 preference points. If the number of applicants within a preference category exceeds
14 the number of Class A bear licenses available in the category, the department shall
15 select at random the applicants to be issued licenses within the preference category.

16 *b0393/2.1* SECTION 726k. 29.184 (6) (c) (title) of the statutes is amended to
17 read:

18 29.184 (6) (c) (title) *Notification, issuance; payment fees.*

19 *b0393/2.1* SECTION 726L. 29.184 (6) (c) 1. of the statutes is renumbered
20 29.184 (6) (c) 1r. and amended to read:

21 29.184 (6) (c) 1r. The department shall issue a notice of approval to those
22 qualified applicants selected to receive a Class A bear license. A person who receives
23 a notice of approval and who pays the ~~required fee~~ fees required for the license shall
24 be issued the license subject to s. ~~29.09 (11m)~~ 29.024 (2g).

25 *b0393/2.1* SECTION 726n. 29.184 (6) (c) 1g. of the statutes is created to read:

1 29.184 (6) (c) 1g. A person who applies for a preference point or a license under
2 par. (a) shall pay the processing fee under s. 29.553 at the time of application.

3 ***b0393/2.1* SECTION 726p.** 29.184 (6) (c) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:
4 29.184 (6) (c) 2. A Class B bear license shall be issued subject to s. 29.024 (~~11m~~)
5 (~~2g~~) by the department to any resident who applies for this license.

6 ***-0221/5.9* SECTION 727.** 29.184 (9) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:
7 29.184 (9) (a) The department shall issue a back tag to each person who is
8 issued a Class A bear license, ~~and the department or county clerk shall issue a back~~
9 ~~tag to each person who is issued~~ or a Class B bear license.

10 ***-0186/1.3* SECTION 728.** 29.229 (4) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:
11 29.229 (4) (f) Sections 29.024 (3), (4) (b), (5) (b), (7), (8) and (9), 29.559 (2) ~~and~~
12 (~~3~~) and 29.564 do not apply to any approval that may be issued under this section.

13 ***-1257/3.4* SECTION 729.** 29.2295 (4) (c) of the statutes is created to read:
14 29.2295 (4) (c) 1. The department shall make the payments under this
15 subsection from the appropriation under s. 20.370 (9) (hk).

16 2. If the amount appropriated under s. 20.370 (9) (hk) is insufficient to make
17 all of the payments under this subsection, the department shall make the remaining
18 payments from the appropriation under s. 20.370 (9) (ht).

19 ***b0398/2.4* SECTION 730m.** 29.347 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:
20 29.347 (2) DEER TAGS. Except as provided under sub. (5) and s. 29.324 (3), any
21 person who kills a deer shall immediately attach to the ear or antler of the deer a
22 current validated deer carcass tag which is authorized for use on the type of deer
23 killed. Except as provided under sub. (2m) or s. 29.871 (7), (8) or (14) or 29.89 (6), no
24 person may possess, control, store or transport a deer carcass unless it is tagged as
25 required under this subsection. The carcass tag may not be removed before

1 registration. The removal of a carcass tag from a deer before registration renders the
2 deer untagged.

3 ***b0386/1.1* SECTION 730f.** 29.319 of the statutes is created to read:

4 **29.319 Falconry regulation. (1)** In regulating falconry and the taking of
5 raptors for use in falconry, the department may do any of the following:

6 (a) Establish by rule a fee for any approval that it issues as part of this
7 regulation.

8 (b) Allow persons who are not residents to take raptors from the wild to be used
9 for falconry, but only if all of the following apply:

10 1. The person holds an approval, issued by the department, that authorizes the
11 taking of raptors for use in falconry.

12 2. The person holds an approval, issued by the state, province or country of
13 which he or she is a resident, that authorizes the taking of raptors for use in falconry.

14 3. The state, province or country of which the person is a resident allows
15 residents of this state to take raptors from the wild in that state, province or country.

16 **(2)** Any fees collected by the department under this section shall be deposited
17 in the conservation fund to be used for department activities relating to fish and
18 wildlife.

19 ***-1516/4.6* SECTION 732.** 29.506 (7m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 29.506 (7m) (a) The department shall issue a taxidermy school permit to a
21 person who applies for the permit; who, on August 15, 1991, holds a valid taxidermist
22 permit issued under this section; and who, on August 15, 1991, operates a taxidermy
23 school approved by the educational approval board under s. ~~39.51~~ 45.54.

24 ***-1255/2.1* SECTION 733.** 29.556 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 29.556 (1m)
25 and amended to read:

1 29.556 (1m) In addition to any other fee imposed under s. 29.563, the
2 department may collect a handling fee for the approvals that the department itself
3 issues to cover long-distance handling costs and in-person credit transaction costs
4 incurred in issuing approvals.

5 ***b0405/3.4* SECTION 733d.** 29.556 (1b) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

6 29.556 (1b) (a) "In-person credit transaction costs" means the costs associated
7 with issuing approvals that are applied for and issued in person and that are paid
8 for by using a credit card.

9 ***-1255/2.2* SECTION 734.** 29.556 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 29.556 (2)
10 (a) and amended to read:

11 29.556 (2) (a) If the department collects a handling fee under sub. (1) (1m), it
12 shall promulgate rules to designate do all of the following:

13 1. Designate the approvals to which the fee applies and to establish.

14 2. Establish the amounts amount of the fee. The

15 (c) fee may not be more than the amounts necessary to cover the long-distance
16 handling costs or the in-person credit transaction costs of issuing the approvals.

17 **(1b)** In this paragraph, "handling section:

18 (b) "Long-distance handling costs" includes means the costs associated with
19 paying for approvals that are requested by mail, telephone or electronic means and
20 includes credit transaction fees, mailing costs and personnel costs that are necessary
21 to process ~~the~~ a credit transaction.

22 ***b0405/3.9* SECTION 735b.** 29.556 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

23 29.556 (2) (b) 1. The department may collect long-distance handling costs and
24 in-person credit transaction costs for the approvals that the department itself
25 issues.

*V. 178 & 17
of super
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25*

A handling

1 2. The department may allow a person with whom it has contracted under s.
2 29.024 (6) (a) 4. to collect handling fees that cover long-distance handling costs. The
3 department may allow the person to retain all or a portion of each handling fee.

4 3. The department may allow an agent who is appointed under s. 29.024 (6) (a)
5 2. or 3. to collect handling fees that cover in-person credit transaction costs. The
6 department may allow the agent to retain all or a portion of each handling fee.

7 ***-1255/2.4*** SECTION 736. 29.556 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 29.556 (3) Any fees collected under this section by the department shall be
9 credited to the appropriation account under s. 20.370 (9) (hu).

10 ***-0186/1.4*** SECTION 737. 29.559 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 29.559 (1) COLLECTION OF ISSUING FEE. Any person, including the department,
12 who issues any license or stamp under this chapter shall collect, in addition to the
13 statutory license or stamp fee, an issuing fee for each license and each stamp the
14 person issued. A person appointed under s. 29.024 (6) (a) 2. ~~or~~ 3. or 4. may retain
15 the amounts specified in sub. (3) 50 cents of each issuing fee for each license and 15
16 cents for each issuing fee of each stamp to compensate for services in issuing the
17 license or stamp.

18 ***-0186/1.5*** SECTION 738. 29.559 (1r) of the statutes is created to read:

19 29.559 (1r) COLLECTION OF ISSUING FEE FOR BONUS DEER HUNTING PERMITS. (a)
20 Any person, including the department, who issues a bonus deer hunting permit shall
21 collect, in addition to the statutory permit fee, an issuing fee for each permit. A
22 person appointed under s. 29.024 (6) (a) 2., 3. or 4. may retain 50 cents of each issuing
23 fee for each permit to compensate for services in issuing the permit.

Plain

1 (b) The issuing fees received by the department for bonus deer hunting permits
2 under this section shall be credited to the appropriation account under s. 20.370 (5)
3 (fq).

4 ***-0186/1.6* SECTION 739.** 29.559 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

5 ***-0216/2.4* SECTION 740.** 29.561 of the statutes is created to read:

6 **29.561 Back tag number reservation fee. (1) COLLECTION OF FEE.** The
7 department shall establish a system under which the department shall reserve a
8 deer hunting back tag number for a person who pays a reservation fee. The
9 department may limit the number of back tag numbers that may be reserved under
10 this system. Upon payment of the fee each year, the department shall issue the same
11 back tag number to that person. Any person, including the department, who reserves
12 a back tag number shall collect, in addition to each reservation fee, an issuing fee of
13 50 cents.

14 **(2) HANDLING AND RETENTION OF FEES.** An issuing fee collected by any employe
15 of the department under this section shall be remitted to the department. An issuing
16 fee collected by a person appointed under s. 29.024 (6) (am) 2. or 3. may retain the
17 issuing fee to compensate for services in making the reservation.

18 ***-1399/2.13* SECTION 753.** 29.563 (2) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:
19 29.563 (2) (c) 1. Bonus deer: ~~\$12~~ \$11.25.

20 ***-1399/2.14* SECTION 754.** 29.563 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:
21 29.563 (2) (d) *Nonresident permit.* Bonus deer: ~~\$20~~ \$19.25.

22 ***-0184/1.1* SECTION 767.** 29.563 (9) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:
23 29.563 (9) (a) 2. Pheasant and quail farm: ~~\$20~~ \$100.

24 ***-0184/1.2* SECTION 768.** 29.563 (9) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:
25 29.563 (9) (a) 3. Game bird and animal farm: ~~\$10~~ \$25.

1 ***-0184/1.3*** SECTION 769. 29.563 (9) (a) 5. of the statutes is amended to read:
2 29.563 (9) (a) 5. Deer farm: ~~\$25~~ \$100.

3 ***-0184/1.4*** SECTION 770. 29.563 (9) (a) 10. of the statutes is amended to read:
4 29.563 (9) (a) 10. Wildlife exhibit: ~~\$10~~ \$25.

5 ***-0184/1.5*** SECTION 771. 29.563 (9) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:
6 29.563 (9) (b) *Late fee*. For a license for a pheasant and quail farm, game bird
7 and animal farm or fur animal farm, in addition to the regular fee: ~~\$10~~ \$20.

8 ***-0184/1.6*** SECTION 772. 29.563 (9) (c) of the statutes is created to read:
9 29.563 (9) (c) *Surcharges*. For the following licenses, the following surcharges
10 in addition to the fees in pars. (a) and (b):

11 1. A license for a game bird and animal farm on which there are bear: ~~\$25~~.

12 2. A license for a game bird and animal farm on which the licensee permits an
13 individual to hunt game birds for a fee: ~~\$75~~.

14 3. A license for a game bird and animal farm on which the licensee permits an
15 individual to hunt grouse for a fee: ~~\$25~~.

16 4. A license for a game bird and animal farm on which the licensee sells game
17 animals, the gross revenue from which is \$10,000 or more during the 12 months
18 immediately preceding the issuance of the license: ~~\$25~~.

19 5. A license for a wildlife exhibit at which the licensee exhibits a bear or a
20 cougar: ~~\$25~~.

21 ***-0197/5.3*** SECTION 773. 29.563 (11) (b) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:
22 29.563 (11) (b) 1. Hunter education and firearm safety instruction fee: ~~\$3~~ the
23 fee as established by rule.

24 ***-0216/2.5*** SECTION 777. 29.563 (14) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to
25 read:

1 29.563 (14) PROCESSING, HANDLING, RESERVATION AND ISSUING FEES. (intro.) The
2 fees for processing, handling, reserving and issuing approvals are as follows:

3 ***b0393/2.2* SECTION 777g.** 29.563 (14) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 29.563 (14) (a) 1. The processing fee for applications for approvals under the
5 cumulative preference systems for the hunter's choice deer hunting permit, bonus
6 deer hunting permit, wild turkey hunting license, Class A bear license, Canada goose
7 hunting permit, sharp-tailed grouse hunting permit, bobcat hunting and trapping
8 permit, otter trapping permit, fisher trapping permit or sturgeon fishing permit:
9 \$2.75.

10 ***-0216/2.6* SECTION 778.** 29.563 (14) (bn) of the statutes is created to read:

11 29.563 (14) (bn) *Reservation fee.* Reservation fee for a deer hunting back tag
12 number: \$4.50.

13 ***-0186/1.7* SECTION 779.** 29.563 (14) (c) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

14 29.563 (14) (c) 3. Each application for a hunter's choice permit, bonus deer
15 hunting permit, wild turkey hunting license, Canada goose hunting permit,
16 sharp-tailed grouse hunting permit, bobcat hunting and trapping permit, otter
17 trapping permit, fisher trapping permit or sturgeon fishing permit: 25 cents.

18 ***-0186/1.8* SECTION 780.** 29.563 (14) (c) 4. of the statutes is created to read:

19 29.563 (14) (c) 4. Each bonus deer hunting permit issued for which a fee is
20 charged under s. 29.563 (2) (c) 1. or (d): 75 cents.

21 ***-0216/2.7* SECTION 781.** 29.563 (14) (c) 5. of the statutes is created to read:

22 29.563 (14) (c) 5. Each reservation for a deer hunting back tag number: 50
23 cents.

24 ***-0197/5.4* SECTION 782.** 29.591 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 29.591 (3) INSTRUCTION FEE. The department shall establish by rule the fee for
2 the course of instruction under the hunter education program and the bow hunter
3 education program. The instructor shall collect ~~the~~ this instruction fee ~~specified~~
4 ~~unders. 29.563(11)(b)1.~~ from each person who receives instruction under the hunter
5 education program and the bow hunter education program and remit the fee to the
6 department. The department may ~~authorize an instructor under either program to~~
7 ~~retain 50%~~ determine the portion of this fee, which may not exceed 50%, that the
8 instructor may retain to defray expenses incurred by the instructor in conducting the
9 course. The instructor shall remit the ~~remaining portion~~ remainder of the fee or, if
10 nothing is retained, the entire fee to the department.

11 ***b0408/2.3* SECTION 782m.** 29.598 of the statutes is created to read:

12 **29.598 Outdoors skills training.** (1) PROGRAM COORDINATION. The
13 department and the board of regents of the University of Wisconsin System shall
14 enter into an agreement with an established national organization that provides
15 training to persons who are interested in learning about the outdoor skills needed
16 by women to hunt, fish, camp, canoe and undertake other outdoor recreational
17 activities in order to provide that type of training to interested persons.

18 (2) MATCH. No moneys may be transferred from the appropriation account
19 under s. 20.370 (1)(mu) to pay for the costs associated with the agreement under sub.
20 (1), unless the organization described in sub. (1) demonstrates that it has contributed
21 an equal amount to pay for those costs. The matching contribution may be in the
22 form of money or in-kind goods or services.

23 ***b0323/1.1* SECTION 783m.** 29.733 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

24 29.733 (3) A person may obtain water from a natural body of water that is not
25 part of a fish farm for use in a fish farm if all of the following apply:

1 (a) The water is transferred directly from the natural body of water to the fish
2 farm.

3 (b) Any of the water that is transferred out of the fish farm after use is
4 transferred directly back to the natural body from which it was obtained.

5 (c) The transfer of the water between the natural body of water and the fish
6 farm is achieved by use of a pipe, flume, ditch or pump or by use of any combination
7 of these items.

8 (d) Any pipe, flume or ditch that is used is equipped with barriers that prevent
9 the passage of fish between the fish farm and the other waters of the state.

10 ***b0398/2.5* SECTION 784m.** 29.89 of the statutes is created to read:

11 **29.89 Venison processing grants. (1) DEFINITIONS.** In this section:

12 (a) “Charitable organization” means a nonprofit corporation, charitable trust
13 or other nonprofit association that is described in section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal
14 Revenue Code and that is exempt from taxation under section 501 (a) of the Internal
15 Revenue Code.

16 (b) “Deer damage management season” means a season for hunting deer that
17 is established or extended by the department in order to reduce the deer population
18 because the department determines that an excess population of deer will result in
19 the increase of damage to agricultural or forest lands.

20 (2) ESTABLISHMENT OF PROGRAM. The department shall establish a program to
21 reimburse counties for the costs that they incur in processing venison from certain
22 deer carcasses.

23 (3) ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS. A county is eligible for reimbursement under
24 this section if all of the following apply:

1 (a) The county participates in the administration of both the wildlife damage
2 abatement program and the wildlife damage claim program under s. 29.889.

3 (b) The county accepts deer carcasses for processing and pays for the costs of
4 processing.

5 (c) The venison that is processed comes from deer that were killed in the county
6 during a deer damage management season.

7 (d) The county pays for the costs of processing the venison.

8 (e) The processed venison is donated as provided under sub. (4).

9 (4) DONATIONS AUTHORIZED. A county may donate the processed venison to a
10 food distribution service or a charitable organization. The county may require that
11 the carcasses be field dressed before accepting them for processing.

12 (5) GRANTS; AMOUNTS; FUNDING. (a) Reimbursement under this section shall
13 equal the amount that it costs a county to process the venison.

14 (b) The department shall reimburse counties under this section from the
15 appropriation under s. 20.370 (5) (fq) after first deducting from s. 20.370 (5) (fq)
16 payments made for county administrative costs, payments made for wildlife damage
17 abatement assistance and wildlife damage claim payments under s. 29.889.

18 (c) If the total amount of reimbursable costs under par. (a) exceeds the amount
19 available after making the deductions under par. (b), the department shall establish
20 a system to prorate the reimbursement payments among the eligible counties.

21 (6) TAGGING EXEMPTION. The requirement under s. 29.347 (2m) (a) that the tags
22 remain with the deer carcass or venison does not apply to a deer carcass or venison
23 that is subject to this section.

24 *b0398/2.6* SECTION 785d. 29.936 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 29.936 (1) Notwithstanding s. ~~29.06~~ 29.934, the department may distribute for
 2 free carcasses from fish and game seized or confiscated under s. ~~29.05~~ 29.931 that are
 3 suitable for eating to food distribution services, ~~as defined in s. 46.765 (1) (b)~~. The
 4 department may have the fish or game that is seized or confiscated processed before
 5 distributing that fish or game to food distribution services. The department may
 6 collect the costs of the processing of the fish or game from the person from whom the
 7 fish and game was seized or confiscated.

***b0322/3.2* SECTION 793p.** 30.1255 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

30.1255 (4) EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES. The department shall expend moneys in
 10 fiscal year 1999–2000 and in fiscal year 2000–01 to conduct activities that provide
 11 information and educational materials to the public regarding aquatic nuisance
 12 species. The amount expended under this subsection in each fiscal year may not
 13 exceed \$25,000.

14 ***b0322/3.2* SECTION 793q.** 30.1255 (4) of the statutes, as created by 1999
 15 Wisconsin Act (this act), is repealed.

16 ***b0429/2.1* SECTION 793m.** 30.134 of the statutes is created to read:

17 **30.134 Use of exposed shore areas along streams. (1) DEFINITIONS.** In this
 18 section:

19 (a) “Artificial ditch” means a ditch, channel, canal or other stream of water that
 20 has no prior history as a stream.

21 (b) “Exposed shore area” means the area of the bed of a navigable body of water
 22 that is between the ordinary high–water mark and the water’s edge.

23 (c) “Highway” has the meaning given in s. 340.01 (22).

24 (d) “Riparian” means the owner, lessee or occupant of land that abuts a
 25 navigable body of water.

INSERT
A

INSERT
Bill 5792
P. 521, 114-14
from AB 133

BILL

1 flow capacity of a stream and is not detrimental to the public interest. The
2 ~~procedures in this subsection do not apply to Applications for permits issued under~~
3 ~~sub. (3) are exempt from the procedures under s. 30.02.~~

4 **SECTION 792.** 30.12 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 30.12 (4) (a) Activities affecting waters of the state as defined in s. 281.01 (18)
6 that are carried out under the direction and supervision of the department of
7 transportation in connection with highway and, bridge or other transportation
8 project design, location, construction, reconstruction, maintenance and repair are
9 not subject to the prohibitions or permit or approval requirements specified under
10 this section or s. 29.601, 30.11, 30.123, 30.19, 30.195, 30.20, 59.692, 61.351, 62.231
11 or 87.30 or chs. 281 to 285 or 289 to 299, except s. 281.48. However, at the earliest
12 practical time prior to the commencement of these activities, the department of
13 transportation shall notify the department of the location, nature and extent of the
14 proposed work that may affect the waters of the state.

15 **SECTION 793.** 30.123 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 30.123 (3) (a) Upon receipt of a complete application, the department shall
17 ~~issue a preliminary decision and follow the notice and hearing provisions of other~~
18 ~~applicable procedures under s. 30.02 (3) and (4), except that no notice or hearing is~~
19 ~~required for.~~

20 (b) ~~Notwithstanding par. (a) applications for proposed bridges which would~~
21 ~~cross navigable waters less than 35 feet wide are exempt from the procedures under~~
22 ~~s. 30.02.~~

23 **SECTION 794.** 30.135 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 30.135 (2) and
24 amended to read:

INS
A

1 (e) "Water-related recreational activity" means a recreational activity that
2 requires a body of water and includes swimming, fishing and boating.

3 (2) AUTHORIZATION. Members of the public may use any exposed shore area of
4 a stream without the permission of the riparian to engage in a water-related
5 recreational activity.

6 (3) RESTRICTIONS; MEMBERS OF PUBLIC. (a) In engaging in a water-related
7 recreational activity in the exposed shore area of a stream, as authorized under sub.
8 (2), a member of the public may not do any of the following:

9 1. Use a motorized vehicle unless an exception under s. 30.29 (3) applies.

10 2. Place a structure or object on the exposed shore area that remains after the
11 person leaves the exposed shore area.

12 3. Cut or remove trees or woody vegetation.

13 4. Remove or damage soils or plants.

14 5. Remove or damage any object that was placed on the exposed shore area by
15 the riparian.

16 6. Camp overnight.

17 7. Enter the exposed shore area except from the water in the stream, from a
18 point of public access on the stream or with the permission of the riparian.

19 (b) Paragraph (a) 4. and 5. does not apply to removal or damage that is caused
20 by normal wear or tear.

21 (c) Use of an exposed shore area of a stream by members of the public does not
22 grant an easement or other right to the exposed shore area that is greater than the
23 right granted to the public under this section.

1 (4) RESTRICTIONS; RIPARIANS; OTHERS. (a) No riparian may prohibit a member
2 of the public from using, as authorized under this section, an exposed shore area of
3 a stream.

4 (b) No riparian may charge a fee for the use, as authorized under this section,
5 of an exposed shore area of a stream.

6 (c) No person may obstruct a highway with the intention to impede or prohibit
7 access by the public to an exposed shore area of a stream.

8 (5) EXCEPTIONS. The right granted to the public to engage in recreational
9 activities on an exposed shore area of a stream does not apply to any of the following:

10 (a) An exposed shore area of an impoundment on a stream.

11 (b) Any artificial ditch.

12 (c) Any location on a stream where there is no surface water flowing in the
13 stream.

14 ***b0323/1.2* SECTION 802m.** 30.19 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:
15 30.19 (1m) (b) ~~Any agricultural uses~~ The use of land for agricultural purposes,
16 as defined in s. 29.181 (1b) (a).

17 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847g.** 30.24 of the statutes is created to read:

18 **30.24 Bluff protection.** (1) DEFINITIONS. In this section:

19 (a) "Obligate" has the meaning given in s. 23.0917 (1) (e).

20 (b) "Protect" includes to restore.

21 (2) AUTHORIZATION. For the purposes of protecting bluff land, the department
22 may expend money from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) for a program
23 under which the department may do all of the following:

24 (a) Acquire bluff land or interests in bluff land.

xxxx

1 (b) Award grants to nonprofit conservation organizations to acquire these lands
2 or interests under s. 23.096.

3 (3) BAN ON LOCATION RESTRICTIONS. In exercising its authority under sub. (2) (a),
4 the department may not limit acquisitions of bluff lands to bluff lands that are within
5 the boundaries of projects established by the department.

6 (4) LIMIT ON GRANTS. A grant awarded under this section or under s. 23.096 to
7 protect bluffs may not exceed 50% of the acquisition costs.

8 (5) RULES. The department shall promulgate rules to administer and
9 implement this section, including standards for awarding grants to protect bluffs
10 under this section and under s. 23.096 grants. The department by rule shall define
11 “bluff land” for purposes of this section.

12 *b0671/2.17* SECTION 847L. 30.277 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 30.277
13 (1m) (a) and amended to read:

14 30.277 (1m) (a) Beginning in fiscal year 1992–93 ~~and ending in fiscal year~~
15 ~~1999–2000~~, from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (tz), the department shall
16 award grants to ~~municipalities~~ governmental units to assist ~~municipalities~~ them in
17 projects on or adjacent to rivers that flow through urban areas. The department may
18 award these grants from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) beginning on July
19 1, 2000.

20 (b) For each fiscal year, except as provided in s. 23.0915 (1r) (c), from the
21 appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (tz), the department shall designate for
22 expenditure \$1,900,000 for grants under this section and for grants under s. 23.096
23 for the purposes under sub. (2) (a). This paragraph does not apply after June 30,
24 2000.

25 *b0671/2.17* SECTION 847m. 30.277 (1b) of the statutes is created to read:

1 30.277 (1b) DEFINITION. In this section:

2 (a) “Governmental unit” means a city, village, town, county or the Kickapoo
3 reserve management board.

4 (b) “Nature-based outdoor recreation” has the meaning given by the
5 department by rule under s. 23.0917 (4) (f).

6 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847n.** 30.277 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 30.277 (2) (a) Grants awarded under this section from the appropriation under
8 s. 20.866 (2) (tz) shall be used for projects that emphasize the preservation or
9 restoration of urban rivers or riverfronts for the purposes of economic revitalization
10 and encouraging outdoor recreation activities that involve the enjoyment of the
11 state’s natural resources. These outdoor recreation activities include, but are not
12 limited to fishing, wildlife observation, enjoyment of scenic beauty, canoeing,
13 boating, hiking and bicycling.

14 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847o.** 30.277 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 30.277 (2) (b) A grant awarded to a municipality governmental unit under this
16 section may be used to acquire land and may be used for a shoreline enhancement
17 project. For purposes of this paragraph, “land” includes rights in land.

18 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847p.** 30.277 (2) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

19 30.277 (2) (c) Grants awarded under this section from the appropriation under
20 s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall only be used for nature-based outdoor recreation.

21 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847q.** 30.277 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 30.277 (3) (e) Whether significant planning has occurred in the municipality
23 area subject to the jurisdiction of the governmental unit prior to its request for a
24 grant under this section.

25 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847r.** 30.277 (3) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 30.277 (3) (f) The level of support for the project demonstrated by the
2 municipality governmental unit, including financial support.

3 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847s.** 30.277 (3) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 30.277 (3) (g) Whether the project involves a joint effort by 2 or more
5 municipalities governmental units.

6 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847t.** 30.277 (3) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 30.277 (3) (h) The potential benefits of the project to the overall economy of the
8 municipality area subject to the jurisdiction of the governmental unit.

9 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847u.** 30.277 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 30.277 (4) CAP ON GRANTS. No municipality governmental unit may receive in
11 any fiscal year more than 20% of the funds that are available for grants under this
12 section.

13 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847v.** 30.277 (4m) of the statutes is created to read:

14 30.277 (4m) GRANTS FOR KICKAPOO. The department may not award a grant
15 under this section from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (tz) to the Kickapoo
16 reserve management board.

17 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847w.** 30.277 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 30.277 (5) CONTRIBUTION BY MUNICIPALITY GOVERNMENTAL UNIT. To be eligible for
19 a grant under this section, at least 50% of the ~~cost of the project~~ acquisition costs for
20 land or of the project costs shall be funded by private, local or federal funding, by
21 in-kind contributions or by state funding. For purposes of this subsection, state
22 funding may not include grants under this section, moneys appropriated to the
23 department under s. 20.370 or money appropriated under s. 20.866 (2) ~~(ta)~~, (tp) to
24 (tw), (ty) or (tz).

25 ***b0671/2.17* SECTION 847x.** 30.277 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 30.277 (6) RULES. The department shall promulgate rules for the
2 administration of this section, including rules that specify the weight to be assigned
3 to each criterion under sub. (3) and the minimum number of criteria under sub. (3)
4 in which an applicant must perform satisfactorily in order to be awarded a grant.
5 In specifying the weight to be assigned to the criteria under sub. (3), the department
6 shall assign the greatest weight to the criterion under sub. (3) (k). The department
7 shall promulgate a rule specifying the types of projects that qualify as a shoreline
8 enhancement project under this section.

9 *~~0221/5.10~~* SECTION 854. 30.50 (4a) of the statutes is created to read:

10 30.50 (4a) “Expedited service” means a process under which a person is able
11 to renew a certificate of number or a certificate of registration in person and with only
12 one appearance at the site where certificates are renewed.

13 *~~0221/5.11~~* SECTION 855. 30.52 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

14 30.52 (1m) RENEWALS. (a) *Agents*. For the renewal of certificates of number
15 or certificates of registration, the department may do any of the following:

16 1. Directly renew the certificates.

17 2. Appoint, as an agent of the department, the clerk of one or more counties to
18 renew the certificates.

19 3. Appoint persons who are not employees of the department to renew the
20 certificates as agents of the department.

21 (b) *Agent activities*. 1. The clerk of any county appointed under par. (a) 2. may
22 accept the appointment.

23 2. The department may promulgate rules regulating the activities of persons
24 appointed under par (a) 2. and 3.

1 (c) *Expedited service.* The department may establish an expedited service to
2 be provided by the department and agents appointed under par. (a) 2. or 3. for the
3 renewal of certificates of number or certificates of registration.

4 (d) *Fees.* In addition to the applicable renewal fee under sub. (3), the
5 department may authorize that a supplemental renewal fee of \$3 be collected for the
6 renewal of certificates of number or certificates of registration that are renewed in
7 any of the following manners:

- 8 1. By agents appointed under par. (a) 2. or 3.
- 9 2. By the department using the expedited service.

10 (e) *Remittal of fees.* An agent appointed under par. (a) 2. or 3. shall remit to the
11 department \$2 of each \$3 fee collected under par. (d). Any fees remitted to or collected
12 by the department under par. (d) shall be credited to the appropriation account under
13 s. 20.370 (9) (hu).

14 *~~0461/1.1~~* SECTION 856. 30.52 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 30.52 (2) CERTIFICATION AND REGISTRATION PERIOD. The certification and
16 registration period runs for ~~2~~ 3 years, commencing on April 1 of the year in which the
17 certificate of number or registration is issued and, unless sooner terminated or
18 discontinued in accordance with this chapter, expiring on March 31 of the ~~2nd~~ 3rd
19 year after issuance. A certificate of number or registration is valid only for the period
20 for which it is issued.

21 *~~0461/1.2~~* SECTION 857. 30.52 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 30.52 (3) (b) *Fee for boats under 16 feet.* The fee for the issuance or renewal of
23 a certificate of number for a boat less than 16 feet in length is ~~\$11~~ \$16.50.

24 *~~0461/1.3~~* SECTION 858. 30.52 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 30.52 (3) (c) *Fee for boats 16 feet or more but less than 26 feet.* The fee for the
2 issuance or renewal of a certificate of number for a boat 16 feet or more but less than
3 26 feet in length is ~~\$16~~ \$24.

4 *~~0461/1.4~~* SECTION 859. 30.52 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 30.52 (3) (d) *Fee for boats 26 feet or more but less than 40 feet.* The fee for the
6 issuance or renewal of a certificate of number for a boat 26 feet or more but less than
7 40 feet in length is ~~\$30~~ \$45.

8 *~~0461/1.5~~* SECTION 860. 30.52 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 30.52 (3) (e) *Fee for boats 40 feet or longer.* The fee for the issuance or renewal
10 of a certificate of number for a boat 40 feet or more in length is ~~\$50~~ \$75.

11 *~~0461/1.6~~* SECTION 861. 30.52 (3) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 30.52 (3) (f) *Fee for nonmotorized sailboats.* Notwithstanding pars. (b) to (e),
13 the fee for the issuance or renewal of a certificate of number for a sailboat which is
14 not a motorboat is ~~\$10~~ \$15.

15 *~~0461/1.7~~* SECTION 862. 30.52 (3) (fm) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 30.52 (3) (fm) *Fee for voluntarily registered boats.* Notwithstanding pars. (b)
17 to (f), the fee for issuance or renewal of registration for a boat registered pursuant
18 to sub. (1) (b) 1m. is ~~\$6.50~~ \$9.75.

19 *~~0461/1.8~~* SECTION 863. 30.52 (3) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 30.52 (3) (h) *Fee for issuance upon transfer of ownership.* Notwithstanding
21 pars. (b) to (g), the fee for the issuance of a certificate of number or registration to the
22 new owner upon transfer of ownership of a boat certified or registered under this
23 chapter by the previous owner is ~~\$2.50~~ \$3.75 if the certificate of number or
24 registration is issued for the remainder of the certification and registration period
25 for which the previous certificate of number or registration was issued.

1 ***-0461/1.9*** SECTION 864. 30.52 (3) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 30.52 (3) (i) *Fleet fees.* A person owning or holding 3 or more boats may, at the
3 person's option, pay a fleet rate for these boats instead of the fees which otherwise
4 would be payable under pars. (b) to (g). Notwithstanding pars. (b) to (g), the fee for
5 the issuance or renewal of certificates of number or registrations for boats under the
6 fleet rate is ~~\$18~~ \$27 plus 50% of the fees which would otherwise be applicable for the
7 boats under pars. (b) to (g).

8 ***-0461/1.10*** SECTION 865. 30.52 (3) (im) of the statutes, as created by 1997
9 Wisconsin Act 198, is amended to read:

10 30.52 (3) (im) *Dealer or manufacturer fees.* A manufacturer or dealer in boats
11 may, at the manufacturer's or dealer's option, pay a fee of ~~\$50~~ \$75 for the issuance
12 or renewal of a certificate of number.

13 ***b0214/2.2*** SECTION 865d. 30.52 (3e) of the statutes is created to read:

14 30.52 (3e) SURCHARGES. A person who applies for the issuance or renewal of a
15 certificate of number or registration for a motorboat to which sub. (3) (b), (c), (d), (e)
16 or (g) applies shall pay the department a surcharge in addition to the fee under sub.
17 (3). The amount of the surcharge shall be determined by the department by rule and
18 shall be based on the horsepower of the engine of the motorboat covered by the
19 application. The surcharge that is determined by the department for a motorboat
20 less than 16 feet in length may not exceed an amount equal to the amount of the fee
21 for the issuance or renewal of a certificate of number or registration for the motorboat
22 under sub. (3).

23 ***-0197/5.5*** SECTION 866. 30.74 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by 1997
24 Wisconsin Act 198, is amended to read:

1 30.74 (1) (b) The department shall prescribe the course content, and the form
2 of the certificate ~~and may collect a fee from each person who enrolls in the course.~~
3 ~~The department may authorize instructors. An instructor~~ conducting such courses
4 ~~meeting standards established by it to retain a course under this subsection shall~~
5 ~~collect the instruction fee from each person who receives instruction. The~~
6 ~~department may determine the portion of the this fee, which may not exceed 50%,~~
7 ~~that the instructor may retain to defray expenses incurred locally to operate the~~
8 ~~program by the instructor in conducting the course. The instructor shall remit the~~
9 remainder of the fee ~~shall be retained by or, if nothing is retained, the entire fee to~~
10 the department for the purpose of defraying a part of its expenses incurred to operate
11 the program. The department by rule shall set the fee for the course ~~and the amount~~
12 ~~of the fee that may be retained by instructors.~~

13 ***b0217/2.1* SECTION 867j.** 30.77 (3) (dm) 1. of the statutes is renumbered
14 30.77 (3) (dm) 1. (intro.) and amended to read:

15 30.77 (3) (dm) 1. (intro.) In this paragraph, ~~“local:~~

16 b. “Local entity” means a city, village, town, county, qualified lake association,
17 as defined in s. 281.68 (1) (b), nonprofit conservation organization, as defined in s.
18 23.0955 (1), town sanitary district, public inland lake protection and rehabilitation
19 district or another local governmental unit, as defined in s. 66.299 (1) (a), that is
20 established for the purpose of lake management.

21 ***b0217/2.1* SECTION 867m.** 30.77 (3) (dm) 1. a. of the statutes is created to
22 read:

23 30.77 (3) (dm) 1. a. “Boating organization” means a nonstock corporation
24 organized under ch. 181 whose primary purpose is to promote boating activities.

1 ***b0217/2.1* SECTION 867p.** 30.77 (3) (dm) 2. (intro.) of the statutes is
2 renumbered 30.77 (2) (dm) 2. and amended to read:

3 30.77 (2) (dm) 2. If the department or a local entity objects to an ordinance
4 enacted under par. (a), (ac) 2. or (am) 1. b., on the grounds that all or a portion of the
5 ordinance is contrary to or inconsistent with this chapter, ~~all of the following apply:~~
6 the procedure under subd. 2r. shall apply.

7 ***b0217/2.1* SECTION 867s.** 30.77 (3) (dm) 2. a. of the statutes is renumbered
8 30.77 (3) (dm) 2r. a. and amended to read:

9 30.77 (3) (dm) 2r. a. Upon receipt of an objection under ~~this subdivision~~ subd.
10 2. or 2g., the department shall order a hearing on the objection under ch. 227. The
11 hearing shall be a contested case hearing, and the administrator of the division of
12 hearings and appeals in the department of administration shall assign a hearing
13 examiner to the hearing as provided in s. 227.43. Persons who are not parties to the
14 contested case may present testimony and evidence at the hearing.

15 ***b0217/2.1* SECTION 867v.** 30.77 (3) (dm) 2. b. of the statutes is renumbered
16 30.77 (3) (dm) 2r. b. and amended to read:

17 30.77 (3) (dm) 2r. b. The hearing examiner shall issue an order on the objection
18 within 90 days after the date on which the hearing is ordered under subd. 2. 2r. a.

19 If

20 c. For an objection under subd. 2., if the hearing examiner determines that the
21 ordinance or the portion of the ordinance is contrary to or inconsistent with this
22 chapter, the hearing examiner shall issue an order declaring the ordinance or that
23 portion of the ordinance void. The For an objection under subd. 2g., if the hearing
24 examiner determines that the ordinance or the portion of the ordinance is not
25 necessary for public health, safety, welfare or the public's interest in preserving the

1 state's natural resources, the hearing examiner shall issue an order declaring the
2 ordinance or that portion of the ordinance void. An order issued under this subd. 2r.
3 c. shall prohibit the enforcement of all or any portion of the ordinance declared to be
4 void.

5 *b0217/2.1* SECTION 867x. 30.77 (3) (dm) 2g. of the statutes is created to read:
6 30.77 (3) (dm) 2g. If a local entity or an boating organization objects to an
7 ordinance enacted under par. (a) that applies to a river or stream, or to an ordinance
8 enacted under par. (b), on the grounds that all or a portion of the ordinance is not
9 necessary for public health, safety, welfare or the public's interest in preserving the
10 state's natural resources, the procedure under subd 2r. shall apply.

11 *b0305/1.2* SECTION 867m. 30.92 (4m) of the statutes is repealed.

12 *b0306/2.2* SECTION 867h. 31.309 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:
13 **31.309 (title) Portage levee system and canal.**

14 *b0306/2.2* SECTION 867j. 31.309 (1) (am) of the statutes is created to read:
15 31.309 (1) (am) The city of Portage may use any amounts from the grant
16 awarded under par. (a) for the renovation and repair of the Portage canal.

17 *-0207/1.3* SECTION 868. 31.385 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 **31.385 (title) Dam maintenance, repair, modification, abandonment**
19 **and removal safety; aid program.**

20 *b0303/2.1* SECTION 869b. 31.385 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 31.385
21 (1m) (intro.) and amended to read:

22 31.385 (1m) (intro.) The department shall promulgate the rules necessary to
23 administer a financial assistance program for ~~municipalities and public inland lake~~
24 ~~protection and rehabilitation districts for dam maintenance, repair, modification,~~

1 ~~abandonment and removal.~~ dam safety projects under which financial assistance
2 shall be provided as follows:

3 *b0303/2.1* SECTION 870b. 31.385 (1b) of the statutes is created to read:

4 31.385 (1b) In this section:

5 (a) "Dam safety project" means the maintenance, repair, modification,
6 abandonment or removal of a dam to increase its safety or any other activity that will
7 increase the safety of a dam.

8 (b) "Small dam" means a dam that is less than 15 feet high and that creates an
9 impoundment of 100 surface acres of water or less.

10 *b0303/2.1* SECTION 870m. 31.385 (1m) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

11 31.385 (1m) (a) To municipalities and public inland lake protection and
12 rehabilitation districts for any type of dam safety projects.

13 *b0303/2.1* SECTION 870p. 31.385 (1m) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

14 31.385 (1m) (b) To private owners for the removal of small dams.

15 *b0303/2.1* SECTION 870r. 31.385 (1m) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

16 31.385 (1m) (c) To any persons for the removal of abandoned dams.

17 *-0207/1.6* SECTION 871. 31.385 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 31.385 (2) (intro.) The following standards shall apply to financial assistance
19 under this section for dam ~~maintenance, repair, modification, abandonment and~~
20 ~~removal~~ safety projects:

21 *b0303/2.2* SECTION 872b. 31.385 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 31.385

22 (2) (a) 1. and amended to read:

23 31.385 (2) (a) 1. State Except as provided in subd. 2., financial assistance for
24 a dam safety project is limited to no more than 50% of the cost of ~~a particular project~~

1 ~~involving dam maintenance, repair, modification, abandonment or removal and no~~
2 ~~more than \$200,000 of state financial assistance for a particular~~ the project.

3 ***b0303/2.2* SECTION 872e.** 31.385 (2) (a) 2. of the statutes is created to read:
4 31.385 (2) (a) 2. A project to remove an abandoned dam shall not be subject to
5 the 50% cost limit under subd. 1.

6 ***b0303/2.2* SECTION 872g.** 31.385 (2) (a) 3. of the statutes is created to read:
7 31.385 (2) (a) 3. Financial assistance is limited to no more than \$200,000 for
8 each dam safety project.

9 ***b0303/2.2* SECTION 873b.** 31.385 (2) (ag) of the statutes is amended to read:
10 31.385 (2) (ag) Of the amounts appropriated under s. 20.866 (2) (tL), at least
11 \$250,000 shall be used for projects to remove small dams ~~that are less than 15 feet~~
12 ~~wide and that create impoundments of 50 acre-feet of water or less.~~ A project under
13 ~~this paragraph to remove a small dam~~ may include restoring the stream or river that
14 was dammed.

15 ***-0207/1.8* SECTION 874.** 31.385 (2) (bm) of the statutes is created to read:
16 31.385 (2) (bm) The department may provide financial assistance for an
17 activity other than the maintenance, repair, modification, abandonment or removal
18 of the dam only if the cost of that activity will be less than the cost of the maintenance,
19 repair, modification or removal of the dam.

20 ***-0207/1.9* SECTION 875.** 31.385 (2) (c) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to
21 read:

22 31.385 (2) (c) (intro.) No financial assistance may be provided under this
23 section for ~~the maintenance, repair, modification, abandonment or removal of a dam~~
24 safety project unless at least one of the following applies:

25 ***-0207/1.10* SECTION 876.** 31.385 (2) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

1 31.385 (2) (c) 1. The department conducts an investigation or inspection of the
2 dam under this chapter and the owner of the dam requests financial assistance under
3 this section within 6 months after having received department directives, based on
4 the department's investigation or inspection of the dam, for the repair, modification
5 or abandonment and removal of the dam or for another activity to increase the safety
6 of the dam.

7 ***b0303/2.3* SECTION 876g.** 31.385 (2) (c) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

8 31.385 (2) (c) 2. The municipality ~~or~~, public inland lake protection and
9 rehabilitation district or other person applying for state financial assistance under
10 this section has received directives from the department or is under order by the
11 department to maintain, repair, modify, abandon or remove a dam on August 9, 1989.

12 ***b0303/2.3* SECTION 877b.** 31.385 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 31.385 (3) The department shall provide municipalities ~~and~~, public inland lake
14 protection and rehabilitation districts and other persons receiving state financial
15 assistance under this section with technical assistance ~~in conducting dam~~
16 ~~maintenance, repair, modification, abandonment and removal~~ for dam safety
17 projects under this section. The department shall coordinate the financial assistance
18 program under this section with other related state and federal programs.

19 ***-0589/2.2* SECTION 886.** 36.11 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 36.11 (6) (b) The board may not make a grant under par. (a) to a person if it
21 ~~receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that the person is delinquent in child~~
22 ~~support or maintenance payments or owes past support, medical expenses or birth~~
23 ~~expenses~~ whose name appears on the statewide support lien docket under s. 49.854
24 (2) (b), unless the person provides to the board a payment agreement that has been

1 approved by the county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is consistent
2 with rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2) (a).

3 ***-1542/2.5* SECTION 887.** 36.11 (36) of the statutes is created to read:

4 36.11 (36) AQUACULTURE DEMONSTRATION FACILITY. The board shall operate the
5 aquaculture demonstration facility authorized under 1999 Wisconsin Act ... (this
6 act), section 9107 (1) (i) 3.

7 ***b0423/2.1* SECTION 887b.** 36.11 (38) of the statutes is created to read:

8 36.11 (38) STUDY OF PROGRAMS IN MARATHON COUNTY. The board shall study the
9 feasibility of expanding the offering of 4–year and graduate degree programs in
10 Marathon County when sufficient private funds or funds from a municipality, as
11 defined in s. 67.01 (5), have been raised to pay for the study. The board shall submit
12 a copy of the report under this subsection to the governor, and to the legislature under
13 s. 13.172 (2).

14 ***b0519/4.11* SECTION 887m.** 36.11 (37) of the statutes is created to read:

15 36.11 (37) EXTENSION LOCAL PLANNING PROGRAM. The board shall offer a local
16 planning program through the extension to educate local policymakers about local
17 planning and the grant program under s. 16.965.

18 ***b0682/3.25* SECTION 888e.** 36.25 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 36.25 (5) (a) The board of regents, as licensee, shall, except as provided in an
20 agreement entered into under par. (c) 2., manage, operate and maintain
21 broadcasting station WHA and WHA–TV and shall enter into an affiliation
22 agreement with the educational communications board pursuant to s. 39.14. Except
23 as provided under par. (b), the an affiliation agreement under this paragraph shall
24 provide that the board of regents shall grant the educational communications board
25 the part–time use of equipment and space necessary for the operations of the state

1 educational radio and television networks. The board of regents shall maintain a
2 separate account for each revenue source for broadcasting station WHA and for
3 WHA-TV which permits identification of the functions or activities for which
4 expenditures are made. The board of regents shall maintain annual records of its
5 expenditures for programming purposes by type of programming and by source of
6 revenue.

7 ***b0682/3.25* SECTION 888m.** 36.25 (5) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

8 36.25 (5) (c) 1. In this paragraph:

9 a. "Broadcasting corporation" has the meaning given in s. 39.81 (2).

10 b. "Broadcasting station" means any broadcast station for which the board of
11 regents holds a license.

12 2. No later than the first day of the 12th month beginning after the effective
13 date of this subdivision [revisor inserts date], the board of regents may enter into
14 an agreement with the broadcasting corporation that requires the board of regents
15 to do each of the following:

16 a. Allow the broadcasting corporation to operate any broadcasting station that
17 is specified in the agreement.

18 b. Grant the broadcasting corporation operational control over any facility or
19 asset of the board of regents that is necessary for the operation of a broadcasting
20 station specified in subd. 2. a., except that the agreement may provide for joint use
21 by the board of regents and the broadcasting corporation of any production facility
22 and the agreement shall provide for the joint use by the board of regents and the
23 broadcasting corporation of one and only one television broadcasting network
24 facility.

1 c. Maintain the facilities and assets that are necessary for the operation of each
2 broadcasting station, including a broadcasting station specified in subd. 2. a.

3 d. Retain the license for each broadcasting station.

4 e. Provide administrative services to the broadcasting corporation that are
5 necessary for the broadcasting corporation to operate the broadcasting stations
6 specified in subd. 2. a.

7 f. Provide assistance in developing and delivering elementary and secondary
8 school educational programming. Any assistance provided under this subd. 2. f.
9 shall be provided at no cost to private and public elementary and secondary schools.

10 3. An agreement under subd. 2. shall satisfy each of the following:

11 a. The agreement shall remain in effect until the maturity date of any public
12 debt issued under s. 13.48 (31) (c).

13 b. The agreement shall ensure that the board of regents has access to
14 broadcasting facilities and air time that is equal to or greater than the access of the
15 board of regents prior to the effective date of this subdivision 3. b. [revisor inserts
16 date].

17 4. An agreement under subd. 2. may specify the terms, if any, for the
18 broadcasting corporation to compensate the board of regents or for the board of
19 regents to compensate the broadcasting corporation for taking an action specified in
20 subd. 2. a. to e.

21 5. An agreement under subd. 2. may not take effect without the approval of the
22 secretary of administration.

23 6. This paragraph does not apply unless the secretary of administration
24 determines under s. 39.88 (1) that the federal communications commission has

1 approved the transfer of all broadcasting licenses held by the educational
2 communications board to the broadcasting corporation.

3 ***b0682/3.25* SECTION 888s.** 36.25 (5) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

4 36.25 (5) (d) At the request of the transitional board, as defined in s. 39.81 (7),
5 the board of regents shall, at no charge to the transitional board, provide staff and
6 legal, administrative and technical assistance for the transitional board to carry out
7 the duties under s. 39.82.

8 ***-0589/2.3* SECTION 889.** 36.25 (14) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 36.25 (14) GRADUATE STUDENT FINANCIAL AID. The board shall establish a grant
10 program for minority and disadvantaged graduate students enrolled in the system.
11 The grants shall be awarded from the appropriation under s. 20.285 (4) (b). The
12 board shall give preference in awarding grants under this subsection to residents of
13 this state. The board may not make a grant under this subsection to a person ~~if it~~
14 ~~receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that the person is delinquent in child~~
15 ~~support or maintenance payments or owes past support, medical expenses or birth~~
16 ~~expenses whose name appears on the statewide support lien docket under s. 49.854~~
17 ~~(2) (b), unless the person provides to the board a payment agreement that has been~~
18 ~~approved by the county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is consistent~~
19 ~~with rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2) (a).~~

20 ***b0689/2.2* SECTION 890m.** 36.25 (29g) of the statutes is created to read:

21 36.25 (29g) The board shall establish in the college of natural resources at the
22 University of Wisconsin–Stevens Point a center to conduct studies and research
23 relating to watershed management.

24 ***-0240/1.1* SECTION 891.** 36.25 (30) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 36.25 (30) ~~HAZARDOUS POLLUTION~~ POLLUTION PREVENTION PROGRAM. The board
2 shall ~~establish~~ maintain in the extension a ~~hazardous pollution prevention program~~
3 solid and hazardous waste education center to promote ~~hazardous~~ pollution
4 prevention, as defined in s. 299.13 (1) ~~(e)~~ (dm). In cooperation with the department
5 of natural resources and the department of commerce, the ~~program~~ center shall
6 conduct an education and technical assistance program to promote ~~hazardous~~
7 pollution prevention in this state.

8 *~~-1077/1.1~~* SECTION 893. 36.27 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 36.27 (4) (a) In the 1993–94 to ~~1998–99~~ 2000–01 academic years, the board may
10 annually exempt from nonresident tuition, but not from incidental or other fees, up
11 to 200 students enrolled at the University of Wisconsin–Parkside as juniors or
12 seniors in programs identified by that institution as having surplus capacity and up
13 to 150 students enrolled at the University of Wisconsin–Superior in programs
14 identified by that institution as having surplus capacity.

15 *~~-0589/2.4~~* SECTION 894. 36.34 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 36.34 (1) (b) The board shall establish a grant program for minority
17 undergraduates enrolled in the system. The board shall designate all grants under
18 this subsection as Lawton grants. Grants shall be awarded from the appropriation
19 under s. 20.285 (4) (dd). The board may not make a grant under this subsection to
20 a person if ~~it receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that the person is delinquent~~
21 ~~in child support or maintenance payments or owes past support, medical expenses~~
22 ~~or birth expenses~~ whose name appears on the statewide support lien docket under
23 s. 49.854 (2) (b), unless the person provides to the board a payment agreement that
24 has been approved by the county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is
25 consistent with rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2) (a).

1 ***-2156/1*** SECTION 895. 36.34 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

2 ***b0182/4.1*** SECTION 895m. 38.04 (10) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

3 38.04 (10) (d) 1. In consultation with representatives of business and labor, the
4 board shall develop a separate approval process for district board proposals to
5 purchase or construct facilities to be used as applied technology centers under s.
6 38.15(3)(c). The board may not approve a proposal unless the board determines that
7 all of the following apply:

8 a. The applied technology center is likely to maintain or increase the number
9 of jobs in the region served by the center that require a high level of skill and provide
10 high wages.

11 b. The productivity of employes who would be served by the center is likely to
12 increase.

13 c. One or more businesses in the region served by the center will pay for all of
14 the direct costs of operating the center and at least 20% of the indirect costs of
15 operating the center, and will fund, either in cash or in kind, at least 30% of the
16 capital costs of the center.

17 2. By December 1 of the year in which a center approved under subd. 1. begins
18 operating, and annually thereafter by December 1, the district board shall report to
19 the board the change, since the center began operating, in the wages, productivity
20 and level of skill of the employes who have been directly served by the center.

21 ***b0430/2.2*** SECTION 895m. 36.36 of the statutes is created to read:

22 **36.36 Grants for study abroad.** From the appropriation under s. 20.285 (1)
23 (er), the board shall award a grant of \$2,000 to a resident undergraduate student to
24 assist in paying the costs associated with the student's study abroad if the student
25 satisfies all of the following criteria:

1 (1) The student demonstrates financial need for the grant, as determined by
2 the board.

3 (2) The student is enrolled full-time in the system in the semester preceding
4 the student's study abroad.

5 (3) The student is enrolled in a program leading to an associate or bachelor's
6 degree.

7 *–1111/1.2* SECTION 896. 38.04 (18) of the statutes is created to read:

8 38.04 (18) STATEWIDE GUIDE. Annually, the board shall produce, and distribute
9 to students, parents, high school personnel and others, a guide containing
10 information on all of the technical colleges and their programs.

11 *b0682/3.26* SECTION 897e. 38.125 of the statutes is renumbered 38.125 (3)
12 and amended to read:

13 38.125 (3) If the district board governing the Milwaukee area technical college
14 determines to relinquish its public broadcasting licenses, it shall, subject to the
15 approval of the federal communications commission, offer to assign the licenses to
16 the educational communications board, subject to approval of the federal
17 communications commission or, if the secretary of administration determines under
18 s. 39.88 (1) that all the broadcasting licenses held by the educational
19 communications board have been transferred to the broadcasting corporation, to the
20 broadcasting corporation.

21 *b0682/3.26* SECTION 897m. 38.125 (1) of the statutes is created to read:

22 38.125 (1) In this section:

23 (a) "District board" means the district board governing the Milwaukee Area
24 Technical College.

25 (b) "Broadcasting corporation" has the meaning given in s. 39.81 (2).

1 (c) “Broadcasting station” means any broadcast station for which the district
2 board holds a license.

3 ***b0682/3.26* SECTION 897s.** 38.125 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

4 38.125 (2) (a) No later than the first day of the 12th month beginning after the
5 effective date of this paragraph [revisor inserts date], the district board may enter
6 into an agreement with the broadcasting corporation that requires the district board
7 to do each of the following:

8 1. Allow the broadcasting corporation to operate any broadcasting station that
9 is specified in the agreement.

10 2. Grant the broadcasting corporation operational control over any facility or
11 asset of the district board that is necessary for the operation of a broadcasting station
12 specified in subd. 1., except that the agreement may provide for joint use by the
13 district board and the broadcasting corporation of any production facility and the
14 agreement shall provide for the joint use by the district board and the broadcasting
15 corporation of one and only one television broadcasting network facility located in a
16 1st class city.

17 3. Maintain the facilities and assets that are necessary for the operation of each
18 broadcasting station, including a broadcasting station specified in subd. 1.

19 4. Retain the license for each broadcasting station.

20 (b) An agreement under par. (a) shall satisfy each of the following:

21 1. The agreement shall remain in effect until the maturity date of any public
22 debt issued under s. 13.48 (31) (d).

23 2. The agreement shall ensure that the district board has access to
24 broadcasting facilities and air time that is equal to or greater than the access of the
25 district board prior to the effective date of this subdivision [revisor inserts date].

1 (c) An agreement under par. (a) may specify the terms, if any, for the
2 broadcasting corporation to compensate the district board or for the district board to
3 compensate the broadcasting corporation for taking an action specified in par. (a).

4 (d) An agreement under par. (a) may not take effect without the approval of the
5 secretary of administration.

6 (e) This subsection does not apply unless the secretary of administration
7 determines under s. 39.88 (1) that the federal communications commission has
8 approved the transfer of all broadcasting licenses held by the educational
9 communications board to the broadcasting corporation.

10 ***b0182/4.2* SECTION 897e.** 38.15 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 38.15 (3)
11 (intro.) and amended to read:

12 38.15 (3) (intro.) This section ~~applies to building~~ does not apply to any of the
13 following:

14 (a) Building program actions approved by the board ~~after January 31, 1980.~~
15 ~~This section does not apply to building~~ before February 1, 1980.

16 (b) Building remodeling or improvement projects.

17 ***b0182/4.2* SECTION 897em.** 38.15 (3) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

18 38.15 (3) (c) A capital expenditure to purchase or construct a facility to be used
19 as an applied technology center if all of the following apply:

20 1. The district board adopts a resolution stating its intention to make a capital
21 expenditure under this paragraph.

22 2. The board approves the proposal under s. 38.04 (10) (d) 1.

23 3. The capital expenditure is made before January 1, 2002.

24 4. The total amount of capital expenditures made by the district board under
25 this paragraph does not exceed \$5,000,000.

1 ***b0182/4.2* SECTION 897m.** 38.15 (5) of the statutes is renumbered 38.15 (3)
2 (d) and amended to read:

3 38.15 (3) (d) ~~This section does not apply to the~~ The acquisition of a building as
4 a result of a lease under s. 38.14 (2) (d) 2. if the district makes no cash expenditure
5 to acquire the building.

6 ***-2156/1* SECTION 898.** 38.28 (1m) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 38.28 (1m) (a) 1. “District aidable cost” means the annual cost of operating a
8 technical college district, including debt service charges for district bonds and
9 promissory notes for building programs or capital equipment, but excluding all
10 expenditures relating to auxiliary enterprises and community service programs, all
11 expenditures funded by or reimbursed with federal revenues, all receipts under ~~subs.~~
12 sub. (6) ~~and (7)~~ and ss. 38.12 (9), 38.14 (3) and (9), 118.15 (2) (a), 118.55 (7r) and
13 146.55 (5), all receipts from grants awarded under ss. 38.04 (8) and (20), 38.14 (11),
14 38.26, 38.27, 38.33 and 38.38, all fees collected under s. 38.24 and driver education
15 and chauffeur training aids.

16 ***-1111/1.3* SECTION 899.** 38.28 (2) (b) 5. of the statutes is created to read:

17 38.28 (2) (b) 5. The board shall reduce each district’s aid payment under subd.
18 2. by the district’s share of the amount necessary to produce and distribute the
19 statewide guide under s. 38.04 (18), as determined by the board.

20 ***-1111/1.4* SECTION 900.** 38.28 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 38.28 (3) ~~If the appropriation for state aid under s. 20.292 (1) (d) in any one year~~
22 ~~is insufficient to pay the full amount under sub. (2), state aid payments shall be~~
23 ~~prorated among the districts entitled thereto.~~ If the appropriation for state aid under
24 s. 20.292 (1) (fc) in any one year is insufficient to pay the full amount under subs. (2)
25 (c) and (g), funds in the appropriation shall be used first for the purposes of sub. (2)

1 (c) and any remaining funds shall be prorated among the districts entitled to support
2 under sub. (2) (g). If the appropriation for state aid under s. 20.292 (1) (fc) in any one
3 year is insufficient to pay the full amount under sub. (2) (c), funds in the
4 appropriation shall be prorated among the districts entitled to the funds.

5 ***-2156/1* SECTION 901.** 38.28 (7) of the statutes is repealed.

6 ***-2007/1.2* SECTION 902.** 38.42 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 38.42 (4) RETRAINING FUND. (a) A consortium of telecommunications companies
8 shall agree to contribute \$3,000,000 to the telecommunications retraining fund over
9 a 3–year period beginning on July 20, 1994. If the retraining fund is depleted within
10 3 years and if requested by the telecommunications retraining board, the consortium
11 shall contribute up to an additional \$1,000,000.

12 (c) Moneys contributed under this subsection shall be credited to the
13 appropriation under s. 20.292 (1) (gt).

14 ***-2007/1.3* SECTION 903.** 38.42 (4) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

15 38.42 (4) (b) If the telecommunications retraining board determines that
16 additional contributions from telecommunications companies are necessary to fund
17 grants awarded under this section in the 1999–2000 fiscal year, the consortium shall
18 contribute additional amounts determined by the telecommunications retraining
19 board.

20 ***-2007/1.4* SECTION 904.** 38.42 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 38.42 (6) SUNSET. This section does not apply after June 30, ~~1999~~ 2000.

22 ***b0682/3.27* SECTION 905c.** 39.10 of the statutes is created to read:

23 **39.10 Definitions.** In this subchapter:

24 (1) “Broadcasting corporation” has the meaning given in s. 39.81 (2).

1 (2) "Fund-raising corporation" means the corporation organized under s. 39.12

2 (1).

3 (3) "Transitional board" has the meaning given in s. 39.81 (7).

4 *b0682/3.27* SECTION 905g. 39.11 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 **39.11 Educational communications board; duties.** (intro.) ~~The~~ Except as
6 provided in a contract entered into under s. 39.115 (4), the educational
7 communications board shall do each of the following:

8 *b0682/3.27* SECTION 905L. 39.11 (22) of the statutes is created to read:

9 39.11 (22) At the request of the transitional board and at no charge to the
10 transitional board, provide staff and legal, administrative and technical assistance
11 for the transitional board to carry out the duties under s. 39.82.

12 *b0682/3.27* SECTION 905p. 39.115 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

13 39.115 (4) Contract with the broadcasting corporation to manage, operate and
14 maintain any public broadcasting station for which the educational communications
15 board holds a license.

16 *b0682/3.27* SECTION 905t. 39.12 of the statutes is amended to read:

17 **39.12 Nonstock Fund-raising corporation.** (1) The educational
18 communications board may organize and maintain a nonstock nonprofit corporation
19 under ch. 181 for the exclusive purpose of raising funds for the educational
20 communications board to support the activities of the educational communications
21 board. Any funds raised by the fund-raising corporation shall be expended to carry
22 out the purposes for which received.

23 (2) The educational communications board shall enter into a contract with the
24 fund-raising corporation ~~under sub. (1)~~. The contract shall provide that the
25 educational communications board may make use of the services of the fund-raising

1 corporation and that the educational communications board may provide
2 administrative services to the fund-raising corporation. The type and scope of any
3 administrative services provided by the educational communications board to the
4 fund-raising corporation and the educational communications board employes
5 assigned to perform the services shall be determined by the educational
6 communications board. The fund-raising corporation may neither employ staff nor
7 engage in political activities.

8 (2m) The fund-raising corporation ~~under sub. (1)~~ shall donate any real
9 property to the state within 5 years after acquiring the property unless holding the
10 property for more than 5 years is consistent with sound business and financial
11 practices and is approved by the joint committee on finance.

12 (3) The educational communications board, the department of administration,
13 the legislative fiscal bureau, the legislative audit bureau and the appropriate
14 committee of each house of the legislature, as determined by the presiding officer,
15 may examine all records of the fund-raising corporation.

16 (4) The board of directors of ~~any~~ the fund-raising corporation established
17 ~~under this section~~ shall consist of 5 members, including the executive director of the
18 educational communications board and 4 members of the educational
19 communications board, elected by the educational communications board, of which
20 one shall be a legislator. No 2 members of the board of directors may be from the same
21 category of educational communications board members under s. 15.57 (1) (a) to ~~(7)~~
22 (h).

23 (5) ~~Any~~ The fund-raising corporation established ~~under this section~~ shall be
24 organized so that contributions to it will be deductible from adjusted gross income
25 under section 170 of the internal revenue code and so that the fund-raising

1 corporation will be exempt from taxation under section 501 of the internal revenue
2 code and ss. 71.26 (1) (a) and 71.45 (1).

3 ***b0682/3.27* SECTION 905x.** 39.15 of the statutes is created to read:

4 **39.15 Applicability.** If the secretary of administration determines that the
5 federal communications commission has approved the transfer of all broadcasting
6 licenses held by the educational communications board to the broadcasting
7 corporation, this subchapter does not apply on and after the effective date of the last
8 license transferred as determined by the secretary under s. 39.88 (2).

9 ***-1517/4.3* SECTION 907.** 39.285 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 39.285 (3) By April 10, 1998, and annually thereafter, each tribally controlled
11 college in this state is requested to develop and submit to the board for its review
12 under sub. (1) a proposed formula for the awarding of grants under s. ~~39.30~~ 39.435,
13 except for grants awarded under s. 39.435 (2) or (5), for the upcoming academic year
14 to students enrolled at that tribally controlled college.

15 ***-1517/4.4* SECTION 908.** 39.30 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 39.30 (2) ELIGIBILITY. (intro.) A resident student enrolled at least half-time and
17 registered as a freshman, sophomore, junior or senior in an accredited, nonprofit,
18 ~~post-high post-high~~ school, educational institution in this state ~~or in a tribally~~
19 ~~controlled college in this state~~ shall be eligible for grants under this section for each
20 semester of attendance, but:

21 ***-0589/2.5* SECTION 909.** 39.30 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 39.30 (2) (e) The board may not make a grant to a student ~~if the board receives~~
23 ~~a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that the student is delinquent in child support or~~
24 ~~maintenance payments or owes past support, medical expenses or birth expenses~~
25 whose name appears on the statewide support lien docket under s. 49.854 (2) (b).

1 unless the student provides to the board a payment agreement that has been
2 approved by the county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is consistent
3 with rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2) (a).

4 ***-1517/4.5* SECTION 910.** 39.30 (2) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 39.30 (2) (f) No grants may be awarded under this section unless the applicable
6 formula submitted under s. 39.285 (2) ~~or (3)~~ is approved or modified by the board
7 under s. 39.285 (1).

8 ***-1517/4.6* SECTION 911.** 39.30 (3) (g) of the statutes is repealed.

9 ***-0589/2.6* SECTION 912.** 39.38 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 39.38 (2) Grants under this section shall be based on financial need, as
11 determined by the board. The maximum grant shall not exceed \$2,200 per year, of
12 which not more than \$1,100 may be from the appropriation under s. 20.235 (1) ~~(h)~~
13 (k). State aid from this appropriation may be matched by a contribution from a
14 federally recognized American Indian tribe or band that is deposited in the general
15 fund and credited to the appropriation account under s. 20.235 (1) (gm). Grants shall
16 be awarded to students for full-time or part-time attendance at any accredited
17 institution of higher education in this state. The board may not make a grant under
18 this section to a student if the board receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that
19 the student is delinquent in child support or maintenance payments or owes past
20 support, medical expenses or birth expenses. Grants shall be renewable for up to 5
21 years if a recipient remains in good academic standing at the institution that he or
22 she is attending.

23 ***b0193/2.1* SECTION 912c.** 39.38 (2) of the statutes, as affected by 1999
24 Wisconsin Act (this act), is amended to read:

1 39.38 (2) Grants under this section shall be based on financial need, as
2 determined by the board. The maximum grant shall not exceed \$2,200 per year, of
3 which not more than \$1,100 may be from the appropriation under s. 20.235 (1) (k).
4 State aid from this appropriation may be matched by a contribution from a federally
5 recognized American Indian tribe or band that is deposited in the general fund and
6 credited to the appropriation account under s. 20.235 (1) (gm). Grants shall be
7 awarded to students for full-time or part-time attendance at any accredited
8 institution of higher education in this state. The board may not make a grant under
9 this section to a student ~~if the board receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that~~
10 ~~the student is delinquent in child support or maintenance payments or owes past~~
11 ~~support, medical expenses or birth expenses~~ whose name appears on the statewide
12 support lien docket under s. 49.854 (2) (b), unless the student provides to the board
13 a payment agreement that has been approved by the county child support agency
14 under s. 59.53 (5) and that is consistent with rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2)
15 (a). Grants shall be renewable for up to 5 years if a recipient remains in good
16 academic standing at the institution that he or she is attending.

17 ***b0161/2.1* SECTION 913m.** 39.41 (1m) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:
18 39.41 (1m) (d) ~~By~~ Except as provided in par. (dm), by February 15 of each school
19 year, if 2 or more seniors from the same high school of at least 80 pupils have the same
20 grade point average and, except for the limitation on the number of designated
21 scholars, are otherwise eligible for designation under par. (a), the faculty of the high
22 school shall select the applicable number of seniors for designation under par. (a) as
23 scholars and shall certify, in order of priority, any remaining seniors as alternates for
24 a scholar with the same grade point average. If a senior from that high school
25 designated as a scholar under par. (a) does not qualify for a higher education

1 scholarship under sub. (2) (a) or (3) (a), an alternate for the scholar with the same
2 grade point average as any senior from that high school designated as a scholar
3 under par. (a) shall be eligible for a higher education scholarship as a scholar under
4 sub. (2) (a) or (3) (a) until the scholarship may be awarded by the board.

5 ***b0161/2.1* SECTION 913mr.** 39.41 (1m) (dm) of the statutes is created to read:

6 39.41 (1m) (dm) If the high school weights different courses differently to
7 determine a pupil's grade point average, the faculty of the high school shall select for
8 each scholar designated under par. (d) a senior with the same grade point average
9 as an alternate for the scholar, or, if there is not another pupil with the same grade
10 point average, a senior with the next highest grade point average as an alternate for
11 the scholar.

12 ***b0161/2.1* SECTION 913ms.** 39.41 (1m) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 39.41 (1m) (e) If Except as provided under par. (em), if 2 or more seniors from
14 the same high school of less than 80 pupils have the same grade point average and,
15 except for the limitation of one nominated senior, are otherwise eligible for
16 nomination under par. (b), the faculty of the high school shall select the senior who
17 may be nominated by the school board of the school district operating the public high
18 school or the governing body of the private high school for designation under par. (b)
19 as a scholar by the executive secretary. If that senior is designated as a scholar by
20 the executive secretary and does not qualify for a higher education scholarship under
21 sub. (2) (a) or (3) (a), faculty of the high school shall select one or more of the
22 remaining seniors with the same grade point average for certification as a scholar
23 and the school board of the school district operating the high school or the governing
24 body of the private high school shall certify to the board one or more of these seniors

1 as eligible for a higher education scholarship as a scholar under sub. (2) (a) or (3) (a)
2 until the scholarship may be awarded by the board.

3 ***b0161/2.1* SECTION 913mt.** 39.41 (1m) (em) of the statutes is created to read:

4 39.41 (1m) (em) If the high school weights different courses differently to
5 determine a pupil's grade point average, and the senior designated as a scholar by
6 the executive secretary under par. (e) does not qualify for a higher education
7 scholarship under sub. (2) (a) or (3) (a), the faculty of the high school shall select one
8 senior with the same grade point average for certification as a scholar, or, if there is
9 no senior with the same grade point average, one senior with the next highest grade
10 point average for certification as a scholar, and the school board of the school district
11 operating the high school or the governing body of the private high school shall
12 certify to the board the selected senior as eligible for a higher education scholarship
13 as a scholar under sub. (2) (a) or (3) (a) until the scholarship may be awarded by the
14 board.

15 ***-1517/4.7* SECTION 915.** 39.435 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 39.435 (1) There is established, to be administered by the board, a higher
17 education grant program for postsecondary resident students enrolled at least
18 half-time and registered as freshmen, sophomores, juniors or seniors in accredited
19 institutions of higher education or in tribally controlled colleges in this state. Except
20 as authorized under sub. (5), such grants shall be made only to students enrolled in
21 nonprofit public institutions or tribally controlled colleges in this state.

22 ***-1947/1.1* SECTION 916.** 39.435 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 39.435 (4) (a) The board shall ~~promulgate rules establishing policies and~~
24 ~~procedures for determining dependent and independent status and for the~~
25 ~~calculation of award grants under this section based on a formula that accounts for~~

1 expected parental and student contributions. ~~The rules shall be~~ and is consistent
2 with generally accepted definitions and nationally approved needs analysis
3 methodology.

4 ~~*-1947/1.2*~~ SECTION 917. 39.435 (4) (b) and (c) of the statutes are repealed.

5 ~~*-0589/2.7*~~ SECTION 918. 39.435 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 39.435 (6) The board may not make a grant under this section to a person if the
7 board receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that the person is delinquent in child
8 support or maintenance payments or owes past support, medical expenses or birth
9 expenses whose name appears on the statewide support lien docket under s. 49.854
10 (2) (b), unless the person provides to the board a payment agreement that has been
11 approved by the county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is consistent
12 with rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2) (a).

13 ~~*-0589/2.8*~~ SECTION 919. 39.44 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 39.44 (4) The board shall notify an institution or school receiving funds under
15 sub. (2) if the board receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that a student is
16 delinquent in child support or maintenance payments or owes past support, medical
17 expenses or birth expenses a student's name appears on the statewide support lien
18 docket under s. 49.854 (2) (b). An institution or school may not award a grant under
19 this section to a student if it receives a notification under this subsection concerning
20 that student, unless the student provides to the institution or school a payment
21 agreement that has been approved by the county child support agency under s. 59.53
22 (5) and that is consistent with rules promulgated under s. 49.858 (2) (a).

23 ~~*-0589/2.9*~~ SECTION 920. 39.47 (2m) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 39.47 (2m) No resident of this state whose name appears on the statewide
25 support lien docket under s 49.854 (2) (b) may receive a waiver of nonresident tuition

1 under this section if the board receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that the
2 resident is delinquent in child support or maintenance payments or owes past
3 support, medical expenses or birth expenses, unless the resident provides to the
4 board a payment agreement that has been approved by the county child support
5 agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is consistent with rules promulgated under s.
6 49.858 (2) (a).

7 *b0174/3.7* SECTION 921m. 39.51 (title) and (1) (a) to (d) of the statutes are
8 renumbered 45.54 (title) and (1) (a) to (d).

9 *-1516/4.9* SECTION 923. 39.51 (1) (e) of the statutes is renumbered 45.54 (1)
10 (e) (intro.) and amended to read:

11 45.54 (1) (e) (intro.) “School” means any person, located within or outside this
12 state, maintaining, advertising or conducting any course or course of instruction for
13 profit or a tuition charge; but in subs. (7), (8) and (10) “school” means any private
14 trade, correspondence, business or technical school not excepted under sub. (9), but
15 does not include any of the following:

16 *b0174/3.10* SECTION 923m. 39.51 (1) (f) and (g) of the statutes are
17 renumbered 45.54 (1) (f) and (g).

18 *b0174/3.11* SECTION 925m. 39.51 (2) to (8) of the statutes are renumbered
19 45.54 (2) to (8), and 45.54 (5), as renumbered, is amended to read:

20 45.54 (5) EMPLOYES, QUARTERS. The board shall employ a person to perform the
21 duties of an executive secretary and such other persons under the classified service
22 as may be necessary to carry out its purpose. The person performing the duties of
23 the executive secretary shall be in charge of the administrative functions of the
24 board. The board shall, to the maximum extent practicable, keep its office with the
25 higher educational aids board department of veterans affairs.

1 ***-1516/4.13*** SECTION 927. 39.51 (9) (title) and (intro.) of the statutes are
2 repealed.

3 ***-1516/4.14*** SECTION 928. 39.51 (9) (a) to (h) of the statutes are renumbered
4 45.54 (1) (e) 1. to 8.

5 ***b0174/3.13*** SECTION 929m. 39.51 (10) of the statutes is renumbered 45.54
6 (10).

7 ***b0682/3.28*** SECTION 1. Subchapter V of chapter 39 [precedes 39.81] of the
8 statutes is created to read:

9 **CHAPTER 39**

10 **SUBCHAPTER V**

11 **PUBLIC BROADCASTING**

12 **39.81 Definitions.** In this subchapter:

13 (1) "Association" means the Wisconsin Public Radio Association.

14 (2) "Broadcasting corporation" means the corporation specified in s. 39.82 (1).

15 (3) "Corporate board" means the board of directors of the broadcasting
16 corporation.

17 (4) "Foundation" means the Wisconsin Public Broadcasting Foundation.

18 (5) "Friends group" means a nonstock, nonprofit corporation described under
19 section 501 (c) (3) or (4) of the Internal Revenue Code and exempt from taxation
20 under section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code that is organized to raise funds
21 for a public broadcasting television station in this state.

22 (6) "Secretary" means the secretary of administration.

23 (7) "Transitional board" means the public broadcasting transitional board.

24 **39.82 Transitional board duties.** The transitional board shall do each of the
25 following:

1 (1) Draft and file articles of incorporation for a nonstock corporation under ch.
2 181 and take all actions necessary to exempt the corporation from federal taxation
3 under section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

4 (2) Draft bylaws for adoption by the corporate board under s. 181.0206 (2). The
5 bylaws shall specify the method for designating or appointing the directors of the
6 corporate board. No later than March 15, 2000, the transitional board shall submit
7 a report to the governor and to the chief clerk of each house of the legislature for
8 distribution to the legislature under s. 13.172 (2) that includes and describes the
9 bylaws drafted under this subsection.

10 (3) Prepare an application for submission by the corporate board to the federal
11 communications commission to transfer all broadcasting licenses held by the
12 educational communications board to the broadcasting corporation.

13 (4) Negotiate an agreement with the association for the transfer to the
14 broadcasting corporation of funds raised by the association.

15 (5) Negotiate an agreement with each friends group in this state for the
16 transfer to the broadcasting corporation of funds raised by the friends group.

17 **39.83 Transitional plan.** (1) The secretary of administration shall, after
18 consulting with the corporate board, prepare a plan for submission to the joint
19 committee on finance that specifies each of the following:

20 (a) The transfer of the unencumbered balances of the appropriations to the
21 educational communications board to the broadcasting corporation.

22 (b) The transfer of positions and related funding from the educational
23 communications board to the department of administration.

24 (c) The transfer of assets under s. 39.87 (2) to the broadcasting corporation.

1 (2) If the cochairpersons of the joint committee on finance do not notify the
2 secretary of administration within 14 working days after the date of submittal of the
3 plan under sub. (1) that the committee has scheduled a meeting for the purpose of
4 reviewing the plan, the plan may be implemented as proposed. If, within 14 working
5 days after the date of submittal of the plan under sub. (1), the cochairpersons of the
6 committee notify the secretary of administration that the committee has scheduled
7 a meeting for the purpose of reviewing the proposed plan, the plan may be
8 implemented only upon approval of the committee.

9 (3) If the joint committee on finance approves a transfer of unencumbered
10 balances specified in sub. (1)(a) and (b), the joint committee on finance shall transfer
11 the unencumbered balances to the appropriation accounts under ss. 20.218 (1) (a)
12 and 20.505 (1) (c) and (kv).

13 **39.84 Duties of broadcasting corporation.** The broadcasting corporation
14 shall do each of the following as a condition for receiving state aid under s. 20.218
15 (1) (a):

16 (1) Maintain a state system of radio broadcasting for the presentation of
17 educational, informational and public service programs, formulate policies
18 regulating the operation of such a state system and coordinate the public radio
19 activities of the various educational and informational agencies, civic groups, and
20 citizens having contributions to make to the public interest and welfare.

21 (2) Protect the public interest in educational television by maintaining
22 educational television channels reserved for this state and take such action as is
23 necessary to preserve such channels in this state for educational use.

24 (3) Maintain a comprehensive state plan for the orderly operation of a
25 statewide television system for the presentation of noncommercial instructional

1 programs that will serve the best interests of the people of the state now and in the
2 future.

3 (4) Work with the educational agencies and institutions of the state as
4 reviewer, adviser and coordinator of their joint efforts to meet the educational needs
5 of the state through radio and television.

6 (5) Furnish leadership in securing adequate funding for statewide joint use of
7 radio and television for educational and cultural purposes, including funding for
8 media programming for broadcast over the state networks.

9 (6) Lease, purchase or construct radio and television facilities for joint use with
10 state and local agencies, including facilities such as broadcast network and
11 production facilities, network interconnection or relay equipment, mobile units, and
12 other equipment available for statewide use.

13 (7) Maintain radio and television transmission equipment in order to provide
14 broadcast service to all areas of this state.

15 (8) Establish and maintain a continuing evaluation of the effectiveness of the
16 joint efforts of all participating educational institutions in terms of jointly
17 established goals in the area of educational radio and television.

18 (9) Act as a central clearinghouse and source of information concerning
19 educational radio and television activities in this state, including the furnishing of
20 such information to legislators, offices of government, educational institutions and
21 the general public.

22 (10) Provide educational programming for elementary and secondary schools
23 in this state and transmit public radio and television to remote and underserved
24 areas of the state.

1 **39.85 State aid. (1)** The broadcasting corporation may receive state aid under
2 s. 20.218 (1) (a) if each of the following is satisfied:

3 (a) The articles of incorporation state that the purpose of the broadcasting
4 corporation is to provide public broadcasting to this state and that, if the
5 broadcasting corporation dissolves or discontinues public broadcasting in this state,
6 the broadcasting corporation shall in good faith take all reasonable measures to
7 transfer or assign the broadcasting corporation's assets, licenses and rights to an
8 entity whose purpose is to advance public broadcasting in this state.

9 (b) The broadcasting corporation initially adopts the bylaws drafted by the
10 transitional board under s. 39.82 (2).

11 (c) The broadcasting corporation permits public inspection and copying of any
12 record of the corporation, as defined in s. 19.32 (1), to the same extent as required
13 of, and subject to the same terms and enforcement provisions that apply to, an
14 authority under subch. II of ch. 19.

15 (d) The broadcasting corporation provides public access to its meetings to the
16 same extent as is required of, and subject to the same terms and enforcement
17 provisions that apply to, a governmental body under subch. V of ch. 19.

18 (e) The broadcasting corporation provides the secretary of administration or
19 his or her designee and the employees of the legislative audit bureau and the
20 legislative fiscal bureau with access to all of the broadcasting corporation's records,
21 as defined in s. 19.32 (2), except records identifying the names of private donors.

22 (f) The broadcasting corporation carries out any obligation of the educational
23 communications board under any contract entered into by the educational
24 communications board that relates to the provision of public broadcasting in this

1 state until the contract is modified or rescinded by the broadcasting corporation to
2 the extent allowed under the contract.

3 (2) The secretary of administration shall pay aid under s. 20.218 (1) (a) to the
4 broadcasting corporation in instalments, as determined by the secretary.

5 **39.86 Broadcasting corporation reports.** (1) No later than September 15
6 of each even-numbered year, in the form and content prescribed by the department
7 of administration, the broadcasting corporation shall, as a condition of receiving
8 state aid under s. 20.218 (1) (a), prepare and forward to the department of
9 administration and to the legislative fiscal bureau all of the following information
10 regarding each program administered by the broadcasting corporation for which the
11 broadcasting corporation is requesting state aid:

12 (a) A clear statement of the purpose or goal for each program.

13 (b) Clear statements of specific objectives to be accomplished and, as
14 appropriate, the performance measures used by the broadcasting corporation to
15 assess progress toward achievement of these objectives.

16 (c) Proposed plans to implement the objectives specified in par. (a) and the
17 estimated resources needed to carry out the proposed plans.

18 (d) A statement of legislation required to implement proposed programmatic
19 and financial plans.

20 (e) Any other fiscal or other information that the secretary of administration
21 or the governor requires on forms prescribed by the secretary of administration.

22 (2) No later than December 1 of each year, the broadcasting corporation shall,
23 as a condition of receiving state aid under s. 20.218 (1) (a), submit a report to the
24 governor and to the chief clerk of each house of the legislature for distribution to the
25 legislature under s. 13.172 (2) that describes each of the following:

1 (a) Any use of state aid received by the broadcasting corporation for serving
2 educational communities, diverse populations and rural and remote areas of the
3 state, including a detailed itemization of the use of state aid.

4 (b) Any progress in advancing the transition to digital television and radio,
5 distance education and other technological innovations.

6 (c) The status of federal funding, private donations, other private fund raising
7 and any financially beneficial partnerships.

8 (d) The status of the broadcasting corporation's efforts to satisfy the duties
9 specified in this subchapter.

10 (3) This section does not apply unless the secretary of administration
11 determines that the federal communications commission has approved the transfer
12 of all broadcasting licenses held by the educational communications board to the
13 broadcasting corporation.

14 **39.87 Transfer provisions.** (1) DEFINITIONS. In this section, "state office
15 building" means the state office building located at 3319 West Beltline Highway in
16 Dane County.

17 (2) ASSETS. (a) If the secretary of administration determines that the federal
18 communications commission has approved the transfer of all broadcasting licenses
19 held by the educational communications board to the broadcasting corporation, each
20 of the following applies:

21 1. Any asset of the state, other than the state office building and the assets
22 specified in subd. 3., that is used by the educational communications board and that,
23 as determined by the secretary of administration, is not a shared asset, as defined
24 in s. 16.26 (1) (b), is transferred, subject to the approval of the joint committee on
25 finance under s. 39.83 (2), to the broadcasting corporation. A transfer under this

1 subdivision shall take effect on on the effective date of the last license transferred as
2 determined by the secretary of administration under s. 39.88 (2).

3 2. Subject to the approval of the joint committee on finance under s. 39.83 (2),
4 the secretary of administration shall transfer title to the state office building from
5 the state to the broadcasting corporation if the broadcasting corporation pays
6 \$476,228 to the foundation or the foundation waives such payment.

7 3. The assets of the state that, as determined by the secretary of
8 administration, are used by educational communications board for the operation of
9 an emergency weather warning system are transferred to the department of
10 administration.

11 (b) Any asset transferred under par. (a) 1. or 2. shall revert to the state if the
12 asset is not used for the purpose of providing public broadcasting.

13 **(3) EDUCATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS BOARD FUNDS.** Subject to the approval of the
14 joint committee on finance under s. 39.83, if the secretary of administration
15 determines that the federal communications commission has approved the transfer
16 of all broadcasting licenses held by the educational communications board to the
17 broadcasting corporation, each of the following applies on the effective date of the
18 last license transferred as determined by the secretary of administration under s.
19 39.88 (2):

20 (a) To the appropriation account under s. 20.218 (1) (a), there is transferred the
21 unencumbered balance of the appropriation accounts under s. 20.225 (1) (a), (b), (d),
22 (eg), (er) and (f), except for the unencumbered balance of the appropriation accounts
23 that are otherwise transferred under sub. (4).

24 (b) To the appropriation account under s. 20.505 (5) (i), there is transferred the
25 unencumbered balance of the appropriation account under s. 20.225 (1) (kb) and the

1 amounts in the schedule for the appropriation account under s. 20.505 (5) (i) are
2 increased by the amount transferred from the appropriation account under s. 20.225
3 (1) (kb).

4 (c) To the appropriation account under s. 20.505 (1) (kv), there is transferred
5 the unencumbered balance of the appropriation accounts under s. 20.225 (1) (g), (h),
6 (k) and (m), and, to the extent allowed under federal law, the secretary of
7 administration shall pay the broadcasting corporation a grant equal to the amount
8 of the unencumbered balance of the appropriation account under s. 20.505 (1) (kv).

9 (4) POSITIONS. If the secretary of administration determines that the federal
10 communications commission has approved the transfer of all broadcasting licenses
11 held by the educational communications board to the broadcasting corporation, all
12 positions authorized for the educational communications board and the incumbent
13 employes holding the positions are transferred to the department of administration.
14 Employes transferred under this subsection have all rights and the same status
15 under subchapter V of chapter 111 and chapter 230 of the statutes that they enjoyed
16 in the educational communications board. Notwithstanding s. 230.28 (4), no
17 employe so transferred who has attained permanent status in class may be required
18 to serve a probationary period.

19 (5) DUTIES OF FORMER EDUCATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS BOARD EMPLOYES. All
20 employes transferred to the department of administration under sub. (4) shall
21 provide broadcasting services to the broadcasting corporation under a contract
22 between the department of administration and the broadcasting corporation for such
23 services. The contract shall provide that the services are to be provided to the
24 broadcasting corporation at no charge to the broadcasting corporation.

1 **39.88 License transfer determination.** The secretary shall determine each
2 of the following:

3 (1) Whether the federal communications commission has approved the
4 transfer of all broadcasting licenses held by the educational communications board
5 to the broadcasting corporation.

6 (2) If the secretary determines that the federal communications commission
7 has approved the transfer of all the broadcasting licences specified in sub. (1), the
8 effective date of the transfer of the last license transferred to the broadcasting
9 corporation.

10 ***b0478/2.3* SECTION 930t.** 40.02 (17) (g) of the statutes is repealed.

11 ***b0478/2.3* SECTION 930v.** 40.02 (17) (gm) of the statutes is created to read:

12 40.02 (17) (gm) Any assistant district attorney in a county having a population
13 of 500,000 or more who did not have vested benefit rights under the retirement
14 system established under chapter 201, laws of 1937, who became a participating
15 employe on January 1, 1990, and who is a participating employe on the effective date
16 of this paragraph ... [revisor inserts date], shall receive creditable service for the
17 total period of his or her service under the retirement system established under
18 chapter 201, laws of 1937.

19 ***-0030/2.26* SECTION 931.** 40.02 (28) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 40.02 (28) "Employer" means the state, including each state agency, any
21 county, city, village, town, school district, other governmental unit or
22 instrumentality of 2 or more units of government now existing or hereafter created
23 within the state and any federated public library system established under s. 43.19
24 whose territory lies within a single county with a population of 500,000 or more,
25 except as provided under ss. 40.51 (7) and 40.61 (3), ~~or~~ a local exposition district

1 created under subch. II of ch. 229 or a family care district created under s. 46.2895.

2 Each employer shall be a separate legal jurisdiction for OASDHI purposes.

3 ***-0030/2.27* SECTION 932.** 40.02 (36) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 40.02 (36) "Governing body" means the legislature or the head of each state
5 agency with respect to employes of that agency for the state, the common council in
6 cities, the village board in villages, the town board in towns, the county board in
7 counties, the school board in school districts, or the board, commission or other
8 governing body having the final authority for any other unit of government, for any
9 agency or instrumentality of 2 or more units of government, for any federated public
10 library system established under s. 43.19 whose territory lies within a single county
11 with a population of 500,000 or more ~~or~~, for a local exposition district created under
12 subch. II of ch. 229 or for a family care district created under s. 46.2895.

13 ***-0797/2.1* SECTION 935.** 40.02 (48) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 40.02 (48) (am) "Protective occupation participant" includes any participant
15 whose name is certified to the fund as provided in s. 40.06 (1) (d) and (dm) and who
16 is a conservation warden, conservation patrol boat captain, conservation patrol boat
17 engineer, conservation pilot, conservation patrol officer, forest fire control assistant,
18 member of the state traffic patrol, state motor vehicle inspector, police officer, fire
19 fighter, sheriff, undersheriff, deputy sheriff, state probation and parole officer,
20 county traffic police officer, state forest ranger, fire watcher employed by the
21 Wisconsin veterans home, state correctional-psychiatric officer, excise tax
22 investigator employed by the department of revenue, special criminal investigation
23 agent in the department of justice, assistant or deputy fire marshal, or person
24 employed under s. 61.66 (1).

25 ***-0797/2.2* SECTION 936.** 40.02 (48) (b) 4. of the statutes is created to read:

1 40.02 (48) (b) 4. A “member of the state traffic patrol” includes one division
2 administrator in the department of transportation who is counted under s. 230.08
3 (2)(e) 12. and whose duties include supervising the state traffic patrol, if the division
4 administrator is certified by the law enforcement standards board under s. 165.85
5 (4) (b) 1. as being qualified to be a law enforcement officer.

6 ***b0240/2.1* SECTION 938d.** 40.03 (6) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 40.03 (6) (a) 2. May, wholly or partially in lieu of subd. 1., on behalf of the state,
8 provide any group insurance plan on a self-insured basis in which case the group
9 insurance board shall approve a written description setting forth the terms and
10 conditions of the plan, and may contract directly with providers of hospital, medical
11 or ancillary services or long-term care to provide insured employes with the benefits
12 provided under this chapter.

13 ***b0240/2.1* SECTION 938h.** 40.03 (6) (h) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered
14 40.03 (6) (h) and amended to read:

15 40.03 (6) (h) Shall, on behalf of the state, offer as provided in s. 40.55 long-term
16 care insurance policies, ~~subject to the following conditions:~~

17 ***b0240/2.1* SECTION 938i.** 40.03 (6) (h) 1. of the statutes is repealed.

18 ***b0240/2.1* SECTION 938j.** 40.03 (6) (h) 2. of the statutes is repealed.

19 ***b0240/2.2* SECTION 939m.** 40.04 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 40.04 (9) Separate group health, long-term care, income continuation and life
21 insurance accounts, and additional accounts for any other type of insurance provided
22 under this chapter shall be maintained within the fund, to which shall be credited
23 moneys received from operations of the respective group insurance plans for
24 insurance premiums, as dividend or premium credits arising from the operation of
25 the respective insurance plans and from investment income on any reserves

1 established in the fund for the respective insurance plans. Premium payments to
2 insurers, any insurance benefit to be paid directly by the fund and reimbursements
3 of 3rd parties for benefits paid on behalf of an insurance plan shall be charged to the
4 corresponding account established for that benefit plan. This subsection shall not
5 be construed to prohibit the direct payment of premiums to insurers when
6 appropriate administrative procedures have been established for direct payments.

7 ***b0478/2.4* SECTION 939m.** 40.05 (2) (bz) of the statutes is created to read:

8 40.05 (2) (bz) The employer contribution rate determined under par. (b) for the
9 department of administration shall be adjusted to reflect the cost of granting
10 creditable service under s. 40.02 (17) (gm) and that rate shall be sufficient to amortize
11 the unfunded prior service liability of the department of administration over the
12 remainder of the 40–year amortization period under par. (b).

13 ***b0240/2.3* SECTION 944e.** 40.55 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

14 40.55 (1m) (a) Except as provided in sub. (5), the state may offer, through the
15 group insurance board, to eligible employes under s. 40.02 (25) (bm) and to state
16 annuitants long–term care coverage on a self–insured basis.

17 (b) If the state offers long–term care coverage on a self–insured basis under par.
18 (a), the state shall allow any eligible employe under s. 40.02 (25) (bm) and any state
19 annuitant to purchase the long–term care coverage for his or her spouse, parent or
20 spouse’s parent.

21 (c) If the state offers long–term care coverage on a self–insured basis under par.
22 (a), the group insurance board, biennially, shall submit to the chief clerk of each
23 house of the legislature, for distribution to the legislature under s. 13.172 (2), a report
24 on the rates of participation in the self–insured program by eligible employes under

1 s. 40.02 (25) (bm) and state annuitants. The group insurance board shall submit the
2 report no later than July 1 of each odd-numbered year.

3 ***b0240/2.3* SECTION 944g.** 40.55 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 40.55 (2) For any long-term care policy offered through the group insurance
5 board under sub. (1), the insurer may impose underwriting considerations in
6 determining the initial eligibility of persons to cover and what premiums to charge.

7 ***b0240/2.3* SECTION 944i.** 40.55 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 40.55 (4) The group insurance board may charge a fee to each insurer whose
9 policy is offered under ~~this section~~ sub. (1), but the fee may not exceed the direct costs
10 incurred by the group insurance board in offering the policy.

11 ***b0572/2.2* SECTION 944m.** 40.63 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 40.63 (1) (c) The employe is not entitled to any earnings from the employer and
13 the employer has certified that it has paid to the employe all earnings to which the
14 employe is entitled, that the employe is on a leave of absence and is not expected to
15 resume active service, or that the employe's participating employment has been
16 terminated, because of a disability as described in par. (b) and as a consequence the
17 employe is not entitled to any earnings from the employer. In this paragraph,
18 "earnings" does not include bonus compensation to which the employe is was entitled
19 under s. 25.156 (7) (a), 1997 stats.

20 ***b0160/1.1* SECTION 945e.** 44.015 (6) of the statutes is renumbered 44.015

21 (10).

22 ***b0160/1.1* SECTION 945m.** 44.015 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

23 44.015 (7) Contract with the Wisconsin History Foundation, Inc., for the
24 purpose of administering the historical society's membership program.

25 ***b0160/1.1* SECTION 945s.** 44.16 of the statutes is amended to read:

1 **44.16 Historic sites foundation Circus World Museum Foundation. (1)**

2 The historical society may enter into a lease agreement with the ~~historic sites~~
3 ~~foundation, inc.~~ Circus World Museum Foundation, Inc., for the purpose of operating
4 Circus World Museum, located in Baraboo, Wisconsin. The lease agreement shall not
5 include any provision for the payment of a percentage of gross admissions income at
6 Circus World Museum to the historical society.

7 (2) Upon request of the board of directors of the ~~historic sites foundation, inc.~~
8 Circus World Museum Foundation, Inc., the governor may nominate, and with the
9 advice and consent of the senate appoint, one member of the board of directors to
10 serve at the pleasure of the governor.

11 ***b0391/2.6* SECTION 945g.** 41.17 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 41.17 (2) ELIGIBILITY. Any public or private organization not organized or
13 incorporated for profit, including a tribal organization of a federally recognized
14 American Indian tribe or band in this state, and any elected governing body of a
15 federally recognized American Indian tribe or band in this state may apply to the
16 department for joint effort marketing funds under this section. Prior to applying for
17 such funds, each prospective applicant shall have submitted, at the time and in the
18 manner provided by departmental rule, a plan and budget specifying the media to
19 be used, the market to be approached, the facilities and attractions to be promoted
20 and the applicant's estimated expenditures and receipts for the various projects
21 within the plan. If such plan is coordinated with the statewide marketing strategy,
22 the department shall approve it and the submitting organization or governing body
23 shall be eligible to apply for joint effort marketing funds under this section.

24 ***b0391/2.6* SECTION 945h.** 41.17 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 41.17 (3) WRITTEN AGREEMENTS. (intro.) Each joint effort marketing project
2 shall be implemented by a written agreement between the department and the
3 applicant organization, ~~which~~ or governing body. The agreement shall specify at a
4 minimum:

5 ***b0391/2.6* SECTION 945k.** 41.17 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 41.17 (4) (a) No state funds may be released for a project ~~which~~ that is not
7 included within an advertising plan and budget submitted by an eligible
8 organization or governing body and approved by the department.

9 ***b0391/2.6* SECTION 945m.** 41.17 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

10 41.17 (5) FUNDING SOURCE. Subject to the 50% limitation under s. 20.380 (1) (b)
11 and the proportional expenditure requirements under s. 20.380 (1) (b) and (kg), the
12 department shall expend, from the appropriations under s. 20.380 (1) (b) and (kg),
13 at least \$1,130,000 in the aggregate in each fiscal year in joint effort marketing funds
14 under this section.

15 ***b0601/1.4* SECTION 945m.** 44.08 of the statutes is repealed.

16 ***b0611/1.2* SECTION 945g.** 44.02 (28) of the statutes is created to read:

17 44.02 (28) In the 1999–2001 fiscal biennium, pay the amount appropriated
18 under s. 20.245 (3) (c) to the city of Neenah to restore the Neenah city clock tower if
19 the city of Neenah contributes matching funds of at least \$25,000.

20 ***b0671/2.18* SECTION 945m.** 41.41 (7) (cm) of the statutes is created to read:

21 41.41 (7) (cm) Acquire development rights in land any portion of which is
22 approved by the department for inclusion in the Kickapoo valley reserve. Purchases
23 under this paragraph are subject to the approval of the governor under s. 20.914 (1).

24 ***-1290/4.6* SECTION 946.** 44.20 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 44.20 (1) The historical society shall operate and maintain the historic sites
2 known as Stonefield Village, Pendarvis, Villa Louis, Old Wade House, Madeline
3 Island, Old World Wisconsin, H.H. Bennett Studios and, if the First Capitol state
4 park has been transferred to the historical society under 1993 Wisconsin Act 16,
5 section 9142 (1e), First Capitol.

6 ***b0601/1.5* SECTION 946m.** 44.49 of the statutes is created to read:

7 **44.49 Heritage trust program.** (1) PURPOSE. The legislature determines
8 that the provision of assistance by the state under this section and the awarding of
9 grants to the Wisconsin Trust for Historic Preservation under this section serve a
10 statewide public purpose by assisting in the protection, restoration and
11 rehabilitation of property located in this state that is significant in the history,
12 prehistory, architecture, archaeology or culture of this state, its rural and urban
13 communities or the nation.

14 (2) DEFINITIONS. In this section:

15 (a) "Local governmental unit" has the meaning given in s. 16.97 (7).

16 (b) "Trust" means the Wisconsin Trust for Historic Preservation.

17 (3) GRANTS TO GOVERNMENTAL UNITS AND NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS. (a) From the
18 appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (zfm), the state historical society shall award
19 grants to state agencies, local governmental units and nonprofit organizations for
20 historic preservation. A grant recipient shall provide matching funds equal to 25%
21 of the amount of the grant, except that the state historical society may require a
22 recipient to provide matching funds equal to a higher percentage.

23 (b) The state historical society shall ensure that all grant recipients under par.

24 (a) comply with the standards for rehabilitation in 36 CFR 67.7.

1 (c) The state historical society may award up to \$1,000,000 in grants under par.
2 (a) in the 2000–01 fiscal year and up to \$1,500,000 in grants under par. (a) in each
3 of the 9 succeeding fiscal years, except that if the state historical society awards less
4 than the maximum amount allowed in any fiscal year the maximum amount allowed
5 in the succeeding fiscal year is increased by an amount equal to the difference
6 between the amount awarded in the current fiscal year and the maximum amount
7 allowed in the current fiscal year.

8 (4) GRANTS TO THE TRUST. (a) Subject to par. (b), the state historical society
9 annually shall award a grant to the trust from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2)
10 (zfm). In the 2000–01 fiscal year, the amount of the grant shall be \$1,000,000. In
11 each of the 9 succeeding fiscal years, the amount of the grant shall be \$500,000.

12 (b) The state historical society may award a grant under par. (a) only if the
13 following conditions are satisfied:

14 1. The bylaws of the trust state that the purpose of the trust is to develop and
15 support statewide initiatives promoting historic preservation and that, if the trust
16 dissolves, the trust shall in good faith take all reasonable measures to ensure that
17 all moneys paid to the trust under this subsection revert to the state.

18 2. The trust provides public access to any meeting held for the purpose of
19 deliberations regarding the awarding of grants under par. (c) 1. to the same extent
20 as is required of, and subject to the same terms and enforcement provisions that
21 apply to, a governmental body under subch. V of ch. 19.

22 (c) The moneys received under par. (a) shall constitute an endowment fund.
23 The trust shall use the earnings of the endowment fund for the following purposes:

24 1. To award grants to state agencies, local governmental units and nonprofit
25 organizations for historic preservation, including historic preservation to

1 commemorate the 200th anniversary of Wisconsin statehood. A grant recipient shall
2 provide matching funds equal to 25% of the amount of the grant, except that the trust
3 may require a recipient to provide matching funds equal to a higher percentage.

4 2. To temporarily acquire historic property for the purpose of historic
5 preservation.

6 (d) The trust shall comply, and shall ensure that all grant recipients under par.

7 (c) 1. comply, with the standards for rehabilitation in 36 CFR 67.7.

8 (e) The trust shall contract with an independent certified public accountant to
9 biennially audit the endowment fund. Within 30 days after the completion of each
10 audit, the trust shall submit a detailed report of the audit to the governor and the
11 joint committee on finance.

12 (5) SUNSET. The state historical society may not award a grant under this
13 section after June 30, 2010.

14 ***-1290/4.7* SECTION 947.** 44.53 (1) (fm) of the statutes is created to read:

15 44.53 (1) (fm) Conduct a program identical to that described in par. (f), but only
16 for American Indian individuals and groups. The program shall be funded from the
17 appropriation under s. 20.215 (1) (km).

18 ***b0604/1.2* SECTION 947m.** 44.53 (1) (j) of the statutes is created to read:

19 44.53 (1) (j) Annually pay to the Milwaukee Foundation, Inc., for deposit in the
20 High Point fund, the amount appropriated under s. 20.215 (1) (e).

21 ***-1290/4.8* SECTION 948.** 44.53 (2) (am) of the statutes is created to read:

22 44.53 (2) (am) Enter into contracts with American Indian individuals,
23 organizations and institutions and American Indian tribal governments for services
24 furthering the development of the arts and humanities.

25 ***-0250/4.6* SECTION 949.** 44.70 (2g) of the statutes is created to read:

1 44.70 (2g) “Educational agency” means a school district, private school,
2 cooperative educational service agency, technical college district, private college,
3 public library system, public library board, the Wisconsin School for the Visually
4 Handicapped or the Wisconsin School for the Deaf.

5 *~~0250/4.8~~* SECTION 951. 44.70 (3m) of the statutes is created to read:

6 44.70 (3m) “Public library system” has the meaning given in s. 43.01 (5).

7 *~~0250/4.9~~* SECTION 952. 44.70 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

8 44.70 (5) “Universal service fund” means the trust fund established under s.
9 25.95.

10 *~~0251/2.3~~* SECTION 953. 44.71 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 44.71 (2) (a),
11 and 44.71 (2) (a) 5. and 8., as renumbered, are amended to read:

12 44.71 (2) (a) 5. Subject to s. ~~196.218 (4r) (f)~~ 44.73 (5), in cooperation with the
13 department ~~and the public service commission~~, provide telecommunications access
14 to ~~school districts, private schools, cooperative educational service agencies,~~
15 ~~technical college districts, private colleges and public library boards~~ educational
16 agencies under the program established under s. ~~196.218 (4r)~~ 44.73.

17 8. Purchase educational technology equipment for use by school districts,
18 cooperative educational service agencies and public educational institutions in this
19 state and permit the districts, agencies and institutions to purchase or lease the
20 equipment, with an option to purchase the equipment at a later date. This ~~paragraph~~
21 subdivision does not require the purchase or lease of any educational technology
22 equipment from the board.

23 *~~b0328/6.3~~* SECTION 953g. 44.71 (2) (a) 6m. of the statutes is created to read:

24 44.71 (2) (a) 6m. No later than October 1 of each year, submit a report
25 containing the discount rates provided to the board for telecommunications service

1 under 47 USC 254 to the department of administration, the joint committee on
2 finance and the public service commission.

3 ***-0251/2.4* SECTION 954.** 44.71 (2) (bm) of the statutes is created to read:

4 44.71 (2) (bm) The board may contract with the Wisconsin advanced
5 telecommunications foundation to provide administrative services to the foundation.

6 ***-1561/1.1* SECTION 955.** 44.72 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 44.72 (1) (a) Award grants to applicants on a competitive basis through one
8 funding cycle annually, except that the board shall ensure that at least one grant is
9 awarded annually to an applicant located in the territory of each cooperative
10 educational service agency.

11 ***b0330/1.3* SECTION 955m.** 44.72 (2) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

12 ***b0331/2.1* SECTION 955m.** 44.72 (1) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

13 44.72 (1) (d) Promulgate rules establishing administrative procedures,
14 eligibility criteria and application requirements for awarding grants under this
15 section.

16 ***-0248/2.2* SECTION 956.** 44.72 (2) (b) 3. of the statutes is repealed.

17 ***b0330/1.4* SECTION 956g.** 44.72 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 44.72 (2) (c) A school district is eligible for a grant under par. (a) ~~or~~ (b) 2. only
19 if the annual meeting in a common school district, or the school board in a unified
20 school district or in a school district operating under ch. 119, adopts a resolution
21 requesting the grant. A grant under this subsection may not be used to replace
22 funding available from other sources.

23 ***b0330/1.4* SECTION 956r.** 44.72 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 44.72 (2) (d) A school district receiving a grant under par. (a) ~~or~~ (b) shall deposit
25 the moneys in a separate fund. The moneys may be used for any purpose related to

1 educational technology, except that a school district may not use the moneys to pay
2 the salary or benefits of any school district employe.

3 ***-0248/2.3* SECTION 957.** 44.72 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 44.72 (2) (e) The board shall distribute the grants under par. (b) 2. ~~and 3.~~
5 annually on the first Monday in February.

6 ***-0249/1.7* SECTION 958.** 44.72 (4) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 44.72 (4) (title) ~~SUBSIDIZED EDUCATIONAL~~ EDUCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY
8 INFRASTRUCTURE ~~LOANS~~ FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE.

9 ***-0249/1.8* SECTION 959.** 44.72 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 44.72 (4) (a) ~~Subsidized loans~~ Financial assistance authorized. The board may
11 ~~make subsidized loans~~ provide financial assistance under this subsection to school
12 districts from the proceeds of public debt contracted under s. 20.866 (2) (zc) and to
13 public library boards from the proceeds of public debt contracted under s. 20.866 (2)
14 (zcm). ~~Subsidized loans~~ Financial assistance under this subsection may be used only
15 for the purpose of upgrading the electrical wiring of school and library buildings in
16 existence on October 14, 1997, and installing and upgrading computer network
17 wiring.

18 ***-0249/1.9* SECTION 960.** 44.72 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 44.72 (4) (b) ~~Subsidized loan~~ Financial assistance applications, terms and
20 conditions. The board shall establish application procedures for, and the terms and
21 conditions of, ~~subsidized loans~~ financial assistance under this subsection. The board
22 shall make a loan to a school district or public library board in an amount equal to
23 50% of the total amount of financial assistance for which the board determines the
24 school district or public library board is eligible and provide a grant to the school
25 district or public library board for the remainder of the total. The terms of any

1 financial assistance under this subsection may include provision of professional
2 building construction services under s. 16.85 (15). The board shall determine the
3 interest rate on ~~these loans~~ under this subsection. The interest rate shall be as low
4 as possible but shall be sufficient to fully pay all interest expenses incurred by the
5 state in making the loans and to provide reserves that are reasonably expected to be
6 required in the judgment of the board to ensure against losses arising from
7 delinquency and default in the repayment of ~~subsidized~~ the loans. The term of a
8 subsidized loan under this subsection may not exceed 10 years.

9 ***-0249/1.10* SECTION 961.** 44.72 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 44.72 (4) (c) *Repayment of ~~subsidized~~ loans.* A school district's or public library
11 board's total payments on a loan made under this subsection shall be equal to 50%
12 of the total debt service on the loan, as determined by the board. A school district or
13 public library board is not obligated to pay the remaining 50% of the debt service on
14 the loan. The board shall credit all moneys received from school districts under this
15 paragraph for repayment of loans under this subsection to the appropriation account
16 under s. 20.275 (1) (h). The board shall credit all moneys received from public library
17 boards under this paragraph for repayment of loans under this subsection to the
18 appropriation account under s. 20.275 (1) (hb).

19 ***-0249/1.11* SECTION 962.** 44.72 (4) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 44.72 (4) (d) *Funding for ~~subsidized loans~~ financial assistance.* The board, with
21 the approval of the governor and subject to the limits of s. 20.866 (2) (zc) and (zcm),
22 may request that the building commission contract public debt in accordance with
23 ch. 18 to fund loans financial assistance under this subsection.

24 ***-1769/2.2* SECTION 963.** 44.72 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

1 44.72 (5) FOREIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION GRANTS. (a) Beginning in the 2000–01
2 fiscal year, the board shall award at least one grant in each fiscal year, on a
3 competitive basis, to an educational organization or consortium of educational
4 organizations for the development and implementation of a foreign language
5 instruction program in a public school in grades kindergarten to 6.

6 (b) The board shall award grants under par. (a) from the appropriation under
7 s. 20.275 (1) (b). The board may not award a grant to an organization or consortium
8 of organizations unless the foreign language instruction is provided to pupils using
9 data lines or video links for which access is provided under s. 44.73 (1) or for which
10 a grant is awarded under s. 44.73 (6).

11 (c) The board shall promulgate rules defining “educational organization” for
12 the purposes of this subsection.

13 *–0722/4.1* SECTION 967. 45.25 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 45.25 (1) ADMINISTRATION. The department of veterans affairs shall administer
15 a tuition and fee reimbursement program for eligible veterans enrolling as
16 undergraduates in any institution ~~within the university of Wisconsin system,~~
17 ~~enrolling in any technical college under ch. 38 of higher education, as defined in s.~~
18 45.396 (1) (a), in this state or receiving a waiver of nonresident tuition under s. 39.47.

19 *–1263/2.1* SECTION 968. 45.25 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 45.25 (2) (d) The individual is a resident at the time of application for the
21 tuition and fee reimbursement program and was a Wisconsin resident at the time of
22 entry or reentry into service or was a resident for any consecutive 5–year period after
23 ~~completing entry or reentry into service on active duty~~ and before the time date of
24 his or her application. If a person applying for a benefit under this section meets that
25 5–consecutive–year residency requirement, the department may not require the

1 person to reestablish that he or she meets the 5-consecutive-year residency
2 requirement when he or she later applies for any other benefit under this chapter
3 that requires a 5-consecutive-year residency.

4 ***-0722/4.2* SECTION 969.** 45.25 (2) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

5 45.25 (2) (e) The individual is enrolled for at least 12 credits during the
6 semester for which reimbursement is sought.

7 ***-0722/4.3* SECTION 970.** 45.25 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 45.25 (3) (a) Except as provided in par. (am), an individual who meets the
9 requirements under sub. (2), upon satisfactory completion of ~~an~~ a full-time
10 undergraduate semester in any institution ~~within the university of Wisconsin~~
11 ~~system or a semester at any technical college district school under ch. 38 of higher~~
12 education, as defined in s. 45.396 (1) (a), in this state or any institution from which
13 the individual receives a waiver of nonresident tuition under s. 39.47, may be
14 reimbursed for up to ~~50%~~ 65% of the individual's tuition and fees, ~~but that.~~ The
15 reimbursement under this paragraph is limited to a maximum of ~~50%~~ 65% of the
16 standard cost for a state resident for an equivalent undergraduate course at the
17 University of Wisconsin–Madison per course or the difference between the
18 individual's tuition and fees and the grants or scholarships, including those made
19 under s. 21.49, that the individual receives specifically for the payment of the tuition
20 or fees, whichever is less. Reimbursement is available only for tuition and fees that
21 are part of a curriculum that is relevant to a degree in a particular course of study
22 at the institution ~~or school~~.

23 ***-0722/4.4* SECTION 971.** 45.25 (3) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 45.25 (3) (am) A disabled individual who meets the requirements under sub.
25 (2) and whose disability is rated at 30% or more under 38 USC 1114 or 1134, upon

1 satisfactory completion of an undergraduate semester in any institution ~~within the~~
2 ~~university of Wisconsin system or a semester at any technical college district school~~
3 ~~under ch. 38 of higher education, as defined in s. 45.396 (1) (a), in this state or any~~
4 ~~institution from which the individual receives a waiver of nonresident tuition under~~
5 ~~s. 39.47, may be reimbursed for up to 100% of the individual's tuition and fees, but~~
6 ~~that. The reimbursement under this paragraph is limited to 100% of the standard~~
7 ~~cost for a state resident for an equivalent undergraduate course at the University of~~
8 ~~Wisconsin-Madison per course, or the difference between the individual's tuition~~
9 ~~and fees and the grants or scholarships, including those made under s. 21.49, that~~
10 ~~the individual receives specifically for the payment of the tuition or fees, whichever~~
11 ~~is less. Reimbursement is available only for tuition and fees that are part of a~~
12 ~~curriculum that is relevant to a degree in a particular course of study at the~~
13 ~~institution or school.~~

14 *~~0722/4.5~~* SECTION 972. 45.25 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 45.25 (4) (a) An individual is not eligible for reimbursement under sub. (2) for
16 more than 120 credits of ~~part-time study~~ or 8 full semesters of full-time study at any
17 institution ~~within the university of Wisconsin system of higher education, as defined~~
18 ~~in s. 45.396 (1) (a), in this state, 60 credits of part-time study or 4 full semesters of~~
19 ~~full-time study at a technical college under ch. 38~~ any institution of higher
20 education, as defined in s. 45.396 (1) (a), in this state that offers a degree upon
21 completion of 60 credits, or an equivalent amount of credits at an institution where
22 he or she is receiving a waiver of nonresident tuition under s. 39.47.

23 *~~0589/2.10~~* SECTION 973. 45.25 (4) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to
24 read:

1 45.25 (4) (b) (intro.) The department may provide reimbursement under sub.
2 (2) to an individual who is delinquent in child support or maintenance payments or
3 who owes past support, medical expenses or birth expenses, as established by the
4 ~~receipt by the department of a certification under s. 49.855~~ appearance of the
5 individual's name on the statewide support lien docket under s. 49.854 (2) (b), only
6 if the individual provides the department with one of the following:

7 *~~-0589/2.11~~* SECTION 974. 45.25 (4) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:
8 45.25 (4) (b) 2. A statement that the individual is not delinquent in child
9 support or maintenance payments and does not owe past support, medical expenses
10 or birth expenses, signed by the ~~clerk of circuit court~~ department of workforce
11 development or its designee within 7 working days before the date of the application.

12 *~~-1263/2.2~~* SECTION 975. 45.35 (5) (a) 2. c. of the statutes is amended to read:
13 45.35 (5) (a) 2. c. Has been a resident of this state for any consecutive 5-year
14 period after ~~completing~~ entry or reentry into service ~~on active duty~~ and before the
15 date of his or her application or death. If a person applying for a benefit under this
16 subchapter meets that 5-consecutive-year residency requirement, the department
17 may not require the person to reestablish that he or she meets the
18 5-consecutive-year residency requirement when he or she later applies for any other
19 benefit under this chapter that requires a 5-consecutive-year residency.

20 *~~-1629/3.5~~* SECTION 976. 45.35 (14) (h) of the statutes is created to read:
21 45.35 (14) (h) To provide grants to the governing bodies of federally recognized
22 American Indian tribes and bands from the appropriation under s. 20.485 (2) (km)
23 if that governing body enters into an agreement with the department regarding the
24 creation, goals and objectives of a tribal veterans' service officer, appoints a veteran
25 to act as a tribal veterans' service officer and gives that veteran duties similar to the

1 duties described in s. 45.43 (5), except that the veteran shall report to the governing
2 body of the tribe or band. The department may make annual grants of up to \$2,500
3 under this paragraph and shall promulgate rules to implement this paragraph.

4 ***-0722/4.6* SECTION 977.** 45.35 (15) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 45.35 (15) LIBERAL CONSTRUCTION INTENDED. This section, ss. 45.25, 45.351,
6 45.356 and 45.37 and subch. II shall be construed as liberally as the language
7 permits in favor of applicants.

8 ***-0589/2.12* SECTION 979.** 45.356 (6) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to
9 read:

10 45.356 (6) (intro.) The department may provide a loan under this section ~~after~~
11 ~~the department receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that the applicant is~~
12 ~~delinquent in child support or maintenance payments or owes past support, medical~~
13 ~~expenses or birth expenses~~ to an applicant whose name appears on the statewide
14 support lien docket under s. 49.854 (2) (b) only if the applicant does one of the
15 following:

16 ***-0589/2.13* SECTION 980.** 45.356 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 45.356 (6) (b) Provides to the department a statement that the applicant is not
18 delinquent in child support or maintenance payments and does not owe past support,
19 medical expenses or birth expenses, signed by the ~~clerk of circuit court~~ department
20 of workforce development or its designee within 7 working days before the date of the
21 application.

22 ***-0725/4.1* SECTION 981.** 45.356 (9) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 45.356 (9) (a) The department may borrow from the veterans mortgage loan
24 repayment fund under s. 45.79 (7) (a) ~~and shall pledge~~ to obtain money to make loans
25 ~~made under this section as collateral for the borrowing.~~

1 *~~0725/4.2~~* SECTION 982. 45.356 (9) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 45.356 (9) (b) The department may enter into transactions with the state
3 investment board to obtain money to make loans under this section. Transactions
4 authorized under this paragraph may include the sale of loans.

5 *~~1263/2.3~~* SECTION 983. 45.37 (3) (b) (title) of the statutes is repealed.

6 *~~1263/2.4~~* SECTION 984. 45.37 (3) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 45.37 (3)
7 and amended to read:

8 45.37 (3) *Nonresident.* A veteran who was not a resident of this state at the
9 time of enlistment or induction into service but who is otherwise qualified for
10 membership may be admitted if the veteran has been a resident of this state for any
11 consecutive 5-year period after ~~completing~~ enlistment or induction into service on
12 active duty and before the date of his or her application. If a person applying for a
13 benefit under this subchapter meets that 5-consecutive-year residency
14 requirement, the department may not require the person to reestablish that he or she
15 meets the 5-consecutive-year residency requirement when he or she later applies
16 for any other benefit under this chapter that requires a 5-consecutive-year
17 residency.

18 *~~0722/4.7~~* SECTION 985. 45.396 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 45.396 (1) (a) "Institution of higher education" ~~means an educational~~
20 ~~institution meeting the requirements of P.L. 89-329 for institutions covered therein~~
21 ~~and of P.L. 89-287 for business, trade, technical or vocational schools and full-time~~
22 ~~post-high school technical colleges~~ has the meaning given in 20 USC 1088 (a).

23 *~~0726/2.1~~* SECTION 986. 45.396 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 45.396 (5) Except as provided in sub. (9), the reimbursement may not exceed
25 ~~50%~~ 65% of the cost of tuition and fees and shall also be limited to a maximum of ~~50%~~

1 65% of the standard cost for a state resident for tuition and fees for an equivalent
2 undergraduate course at the University of Wisconsin–Madison per course and may
3 not be provided to an individual more than 4 times during any consecutive 12–month
4 period.

5 ***-0589/2.14* SECTION 987.** 45.396 (6) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to
6 read:

7 45.396 (6) (intro.) The department may make a grant ~~to an applicant~~ under this
8 section ~~after the department receives a certification under s. 49.855 (7) that the~~
9 ~~applicant is delinquent in child support or maintenance payments or owes past~~
10 ~~support, medical expenses or birth expenses to an applicant whose name appears on~~
11 the statewide support lien docket under s. 49.854 (2) (b) only if the applicant provides
12 the department with one of the following:

13 ***-0589/2.15* SECTION 988.** 45.396 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 45.396 (6) (b) A statement that the applicant is not delinquent in child support
15 or maintenance payments and does not owe past support, medical expenses or birth
16 expenses, signed by the ~~clerk of circuit court~~ department of workforce development
17 or its designee within 7 working days before the date of the application.

18 ***b0521/1.1* SECTION 989g.** 45.397 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

19 ***-1263/2.5* SECTION 990.** 45.71 (16) (a) 2m. a. of the statutes is amended to
20 read:

21 45.71 (16) (a) 2m. a. Has been a resident of this state for any consecutive 5–year
22 period after ~~completing~~ enlistment or induction into service on active duty and before
23 the date of his or her application or death. If a person applying for a benefit under
24 this subchapter meets that 5–consecutive–year residency requirement, the
25 department may not require the person to reestablish that he or she meets the

1 5-consecutive-year residency requirement when he or she applies for any other
2 benefit under this chapter that requires a 5-consecutive-year residency.

3 *~~0589/2.16~~* SECTION 991. 45.74 (6) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:
4 45.74 (6) DELINQUENT SUPPORT PAYMENTS. (intro.) The person is delinquent in
5 child support or maintenance payments or owes past support, medical expenses or
6 birth expenses, as evidenced by ~~a certification under s. 49.855 (7)~~ the appearance of
7 the person's name on the statewide support lien docket under s. 49.854 (2) (b), unless
8 the person provides the department or authorized lender with one of the following:

9 *~~0589/2.17~~* SECTION 992. 45.74 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:
10 45.74 (6) (b) A statement that the person is not delinquent in child support or
11 maintenance payments and does not owe past support, medical expenses or birth
12 expenses, signed by the ~~clerk of circuit court~~ department of workforce development
13 or its designee within 7 working days before the date of the application.

14 *~~0729/2.1~~* SECTION 993. 45.76 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:
15 45.76 (1) (c) *Home improvements*. A loan of not more than ~~\$15,000~~ \$25,000 to
16 improve a home, including construction of a garage.

17 *~~1432/7.46~~* SECTION 994. 45.79 (9) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:
18 45.79 (9) (a) All moneys received from any source for repayment of loans,
19 mortgages or mortgage loan notes funded with proceeds of revenue obligations
20 issued under sub. (6) (c) shall be deposited into one or more separate nonlapsible
21 trust funds in the state treasury or with a trustee ~~as provided in s. 18.56 (9) (j)~~
22 appointed for that purpose by the authorizing resolution for the revenue obligations.

23 The board may pledge revenues received by the funds to secure revenue obligations
24 issued under sub. (6) (c) and shall have all other powers necessary and convenient
25 to distribute the proceeds of the revenue obligations and loan repayments in

1 accordance with subch. II of ch. 18. Unrestricted balances in the funds may be used
2 to fund additional loans issued under sub. (6)(c) and pay the balances owing on loans
3 after the assumptions of the loans or the closings of the sales of residences under sub.
4 (10)(c).

5 ***-0284/3.3* SECTION 995.** 46.03 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 46.03 (1) INSTITUTIONS GOVERNED. Maintain and govern the Mendota and the
7 Winnebago mental health institutes; the secure mental health facility established
8 under s. 46.055; and the centers for the developmentally disabled.

9 ***-0274/2.1* SECTION 996.** 46.03 (7) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

10 46.03 (7) (g) Before July 1, 2005, establish a statewide automated child welfare
11 information system.

12 ***-1732/1.2* SECTION 997.** 46.03 (22) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 46.03 (22) (a) “Community living arrangement” means any of the following
14 facilities licensed or operated, or permitted under the authority of the department:
15 child welfare agencies under s. 48.60, group homes for children under s. 48.02 (7) and
16 community-based residential facilities under s. 50.01; but does not include adult
17 family homes, as defined in s. 50.01, day care centers, nursing homes, general
18 hospitals, special hospitals, prisons and jails. ~~“Community living arrangement” also~~
19 ~~includes a youth village program as described in s. 118.42.~~

20 ***b0228/2.1* SECTION 999m.** 46.036 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

21 46.036 (8) If the department proposes to consolidate contracts into one single
22 contract to cover care or services under more than one program administered by the
23 subunit of the department that is primarily responsible for administering public
24 health, the department shall submit the proposed contract to the cochairpersons of
25 the joint committee on finance. The proposed contract shall detail the programs for

1 which care or services are being contracted, the allocation of funds for each program
2 and outcome performance incentives and disincentives offered under the contract.
3 If the cochairpersons of the committee do not notify the secretary within 14 working
4 days after receiving the proposed contract that the cochairpersons have scheduled
5 a meeting for the purpose of reviewing the contract, the department may enter into
6 the contract as proposed. If, within 14 working days after receiving the proposed
7 contract, the cochairpersons notify the secretary that the cochairpersons have
8 scheduled a meeting for the purpose of reviewing the proposed contract, the
9 department may not enter into the contract except as approved by the committee.

10 *–0023/4.2* **SECTION 1000.** 46.043 of the statutes is created to read:

11 **46.043 Additional services of mental health institutes.** (1) In addition
12 to inpatient and outpatient services provided at mental health institutes under ss.
13 51.05 and 51.07, the department may authorize mental health institutes to offer
14 services other than inpatient mental health services when the department
15 determines that community services need to be supplemented. Services that may be
16 offered under this section include mental health outpatient treatment and services,
17 day programming, consultation and services in residential facilities, including group
18 homes, child caring institutions and community–based residential facilities.

19 (2) Services under this section may be provided only under contract between
20 the department and a county department under s. 46. 215, 46.22 or 46.23, a school
21 district or another public or private entity within the state to persons referred from
22 those entities, at the discretion of the department. The department shall charge the
23 referring entity all costs associated with providing the services. Unless a referral is
24 made, the department may not offer services under this section to the person who is
25 to receive the services or his or her family. The department may not impose a charge

1 for services under this section upon the person receiving the services or his or her
2 family. The department shall credit any revenues received under this section to the
3 appropriation account under s. 20.435 (2) (gk).

4 (3) (a) Except as provided in par. (b), services under this section are governed
5 by all of the following:

6 1. The terms of the contract between the department and the referring entity.

7 2. Subchapter XVI of ch. 48 and ss. 50.03, 50.032, 50.033, 50.034 (1) to (3),
8 50.035, 50.04, 50.09, 51.04, 51.42 (7) (b) and 51.61. In applying these statutes, the
9 services shall be considered to be provided by a private entity.

10 3. Rules promulgated under the statutes specified in subd. 2.

11 (b) In the event of a conflict between par. (a) 1. and 2. or 3., the services shall
12 comply with the contractual, statutory or rules provision that is most protective of
13 the service recipient's health, safety, welfare or rights.

14 (c) Sections 46.03 (18), 46.10, 51.15 (2), 51.20 (13) (c) 1. and 51.42 (3) (as), other
15 similar provisions in chs. 46 and 51 and zoning or other ordinances or regulations of
16 the county, city, town or village in which the services are provided or the facility is
17 located do not apply to the services under this section.

18 (d) The department may not be required, by court order or otherwise, to offer
19 services under this section.

20 (4) Services in a residential facility operated by a mental health institute that
21 are authorized by the department under this section shall be provided only in a
22 facility that is situated on the grounds of a mental health institute. The facility may
23 not be considered to be a hospital, as defined in s. 50.33 (2), an inpatient facility, as
24 defined in s. 51.01 (10), a state treatment facility, as defined in s. 51.01 (15), or a
25 treatment facility, as defined in s. 51.01 (19).

1 ***-0284/3.4*** SECTION 1001. 46.055 of the statutes is created to read:

2 **46.055 Secure mental health facility for sexually violent persons.** The
3 department shall establish and operate a secure mental health facility for the
4 detention, evaluation and institutional care of persons under ch. 980.

5 ***b0590/3.2*** SECTION 1002d. 46.057 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 46.057 (2) From the appropriation account under s. 20.410 (3) (ba), the
7 department of corrections shall transfer to the appropriation account under s. 20.435
8 (2) (kx) \$1,273,900 in fiscal year 1999–2000 and \$1,379,300 in fiscal year 2000–01
9 and, from the appropriation account under s. 20.410 (3) (hm), the department of
10 corrections shall transfer to the appropriation account under s. 20.435 (2) (kx)
11 ~~\$3,125,100~~ \$2,489,300 in fiscal year ~~1997–98~~ 1999–2000 and ~~\$3,236,200~~ \$2,489,900
12 in fiscal year ~~1998–99~~ 2000–01 for services for juveniles placed at the Mendota
13 juvenile treatment center. The department of health and family services may charge
14 the department of corrections not more than the actual cost of providing those
15 services.

16 ***b0608/1.1*** SECTION 1002j. 46.058 (2m) of the statutes is created to read:

17 46.058 (2m) The superintendents of the secure mental health facility
18 established under s. 46.055, the Wisconsin resource center established under s.
19 46.056 and any secure mental health unit or facility provided by the department of
20 corrections under s. 980.065 (2) shall adopt proper means to prevent escapes of
21 persons detained or committed to the facility, center or unit under ch. 980 and may
22 adopt proper means to pursue and capture persons detained or committed to the
23 facility, center or unit under ch. 980 who have escaped. In adopting means under this
24 subsection to prevent escape and pursue and capture persons who have escaped, a
25 superintendent may delegate to designated staff members of the facility, center or

1 unit the power to use necessary and appropriate force, as defined by the department
2 by rule, to prevent escapes and capture escaped persons.

3 *~~0284/3.5~~* SECTION 1003. 46.10 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 46.10 (2) Except as provided in subs. (2m) and (14) (b) and (c), any person,
5 including but not limited to a person admitted, committed or placed under s. 975.01,
6 1977 stats., s. 975.02, 1977 stats., and s. 975.17, 1977 stats., and ss. 51.10, 51.13,
7 51.15, 51.20, 51.35 (3), 51.37 (5), 51.45 (10), (11), (12) and (13), 55.05, 55.06, 971.14
8 (2) and (5), 971.17 (1), 975.06 and 980.06, receiving care, maintenance, services and
9 supplies provided by any institution in this state including University of Wisconsin
10 Hospitals and Clinics, in which the state is chargeable with all or part of the person's
11 care, maintenance, services and supplies, any person receiving care and services
12 from a county department established under s. 51.42 or 51.437 or from a facility
13 established under s. 49.73, and any person receiving treatment and services from a
14 public or private agency under s. 980.06 (2) (c), 1997 stats., or s. 971.17 (3) (d) or (4)
15 (e), ~~980.06 (2) (e)~~ or 980.08 (5) ^{check Δ} and the person's property and estate, including the
16 homestead, and the spouse of the person, and the spouse's property and estate,
17 including the homestead, and, in the case of a minor child, the parents of the person,
18 and their property and estates, including their homestead, and, in the case of a
19 foreign child described in s. 48.839 (1) who became dependent on public funds for his
20 or her primary support before an order granting his or her adoption, the resident of
21 this state appointed guardian of the child by a foreign court who brought the child
22 into this state for the purpose of adoption, and his or her property and estate,
23 including his or her homestead, shall be liable for the cost of the care, maintenance,
24 services and supplies in accordance with the fee schedule established by the
25 department under s. 46.03 (18). If a spouse, widow or minor, or an incapacitated

1 person may be lawfully dependent upon the property for their support, the court
2 shall release all or such part of the property and estate from the charges that may
3 be necessary to provide for those persons. The department shall make every
4 reasonable effort to notify the liable persons as soon as possible after the beginning
5 of the maintenance, but the notice or the receipt thereof is not a condition of liability.

6 ***-0030/2.28* SECTION 1010.** 46.21 (2m) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 46.21 (2m) (c) *Exchange of information.* Notwithstanding ss. 46.2895 (9), 48.78
8 (2) (a), 49.45 (4), 49.83, 51.30, 51.45 (14) (a), 55.06 (17) (c), 146.82, 252.11 (7) and
9 253.07 (3) (c), any subunit of the county department of human services acting under
10 this subsection may exchange confidential information about a client, without the
11 informed consent of the client, with any other subunit of the same county department
12 of human services, with a resource center, care management organization or family
13 care district, or with any person providing services to the client under a purchase of
14 services contract with the county department of human services or with a resource
15 center, care management organization or family care district, if necessary to enable
16 an employe or service provider to perform his or her duties, or to enable the county
17 department of human services to coordinate the delivery of services to the client.

18 ***-1186/4.8* SECTION 1011.** 46.215 (1) (j) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 46.215 (1) (j) To make payments in such manner as the department of
20 workforce development may determine for training of recipients, former recipients
21 and potential recipients of aid in programs established under ss. s. 49.193, 1997
22 stats., and s. 49.26 (1).

23 ***-0030/2.29* SECTION 1012.** 46.215 (1) (r) of the statutes is created to read:


24 46.215 (1) (r) If authorized under s. 46.283 (1) (a) 1., to apply to the department
25 of health and family services to operate a resource center under s. 46.283 and, if the

1 department contracts with the county under s. 46.283 (2), to operate the resource
2 center.

3 *~~0030/2.30~~* SECTION 1013. 46.215 (1) (s) of the statutes is created to read:

4 46.215 (1) (s) If authorized under s. 46.284 (1) (a) 1., to apply to the department
5 of health and family services to operate a care management organization under s.
6 46.284 and, if the department contracts with the county under s. 46.284 (2), to
7 operate the care management organization and, if appropriate, place funds in a risk
8 reserve.

9 *b0616/3.1* SECTION 1014p. 46.215 (1g) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 46.215 (1g) ADMINISTRATION OF FOOD STAMPS FOR PARTICIPANTS IN BY A WISCONSIN
11 WORKS AGENCY. The Wisconsin works agency, as defined in s. 49.001 (9), shall, to the
12 extent permitted by federal law, and subject to s. 49.143 (2) (e), certify eligibility for
13 and distribute, if 

14 determined eligible, issue food coupons under s. 49.143 (2) (e) to eligible
15 participants in the Wisconsin works program under subch. III of ch. 49.

16 *~~0030/2.31~~* SECTION 1017. 46.215 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 46.215 (1m) EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION. Notwithstanding ss. 46.2895 (9), 48.78
18 (2) (a), 49.45 (4), 49.83, 51.30, 51.45 (14) (a), 55.06 (17) (c), 146.82, 252.11 (7), 253.07
19 (3) (c) and 938.78 (2) (a), any subunit of the county department of social services
20 acting under this section may exchange confidential information about a client,
21 without the informed consent of the client, with any other subunit of the same county
22 department of social services, with a resource center, care management organization
23 or family care district, or with any person providing services to the client under a
24 purchase of services contract with the county department of social services or with
25 a resource center, care management organization or family care district, if necessary

1 to enable an employe or service provider to perform his or her duties, or to enable the
2 county department of social services to coordinate the delivery of services to the
3 client.

4 ***-0271/4.2* SECTION 1018.** 46.215 (2) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 46.215 (2) (c) 1. A county department of social services shall develop, under the
6 requirements of s. 46.036, plans and contracts for care and services to be purchased,
7 except for care and services under subch. III of ch. 49 or s. 301.08 (2). The department
8 of health and family services may review the contracts and approve them if they are
9 consistent with s. 46.036 and if state or federal funds are available for such purposes.
10 The joint committee on finance may require the department of health and family
11 services to submit the contracts to the committee for review and approval. The
12 department of health and family services may not make any payments to a county
13 for programs included in a contract under review by the committee. The department
14 of health and family services shall reimburse each county for the contracts from the
15 appropriations under s. 20.435 (3) (o) and (7) (b), (kw) and (o), as appropriate, under
16 s. 46.495.

17 ***-0030/2.32* SECTION 1019.** 46.22 (1) (b) 1. j. of the statutes is created to read:

18 46.22 (1) (b) 1. j. If authorized under s. 46.283 (1) (a) 1., to apply to the
19 department of health and family services to operate a resource center under s. 46.283
20 and, if the department contracts with the county under s. 46.283 (2), to operate the
21 resource center.

22 ***-0030/2.33* SECTION 1020.** 46.22 (1) (b) 1. k. of the statutes is created to read:

23 46.22 (1) (b) 1. k. If authorized under s. 46.284 (1) (a) 1., to apply to the
24 department of health and family services to operate a care management organization
25 under s. 46.284 and, if the department contracts with the county under s. 46.284 (2),

1 to operate the care management organization and, if appropriate, place funds in a
2 risk reserve.

3 ***-1186/4.9* SECTION 1021.** 46.22 (1) (b) 2. a. of the statutes is repealed.

4 ***-1186/4.10* SECTION 1022.** 46.22 (1) (b) 2. e. of the statutes is amended to
5 read:

6 46.22 (1) (b) 2. e. To make payments in such manner as the department of
7 workforce development may determine for training of recipients, former recipients
8 and potential recipients of aid in programs established under ss. 49.193, 1997 stats.,
9 and 49.26 (1).

10 ***-0274/2.2* SECTION 1023.** 46.22 (1) (c) 8. f. of the statutes is created to read:

11 46.22 (1) (c) 8. f. Before July 1, 2005, the county department of social services
12 shall implement the statewide automated child welfare information system
13 established by the department under s. 46.03 (7) (g).